“OU SINQ
Sl Y,

29

V.

VI.

VILI.

VIILI.

““MN Q

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

¢,
*-;, REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING
r 12:00 P.M., October 21, 2025
S," GHURA'’s Main Office (via Zoom)
(ér 1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana
_,961.,} AGENDA
ROLL CALL

BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS
1stPrinting - Tuesday, October 14, 2025
2nd Printing - Sunday, October 19, 2025

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES - September 30, 2025

PAGE (S)

NEW BUSINESS

Resolution NO. FY2026-001 .......ccocueicvoimmssmmsssssnssssses s ss s snsns snssas s sas sns snsses
Resolution Approving the Write-Off of Tenant Accounts Receivable

as of September 30, 2025

1-10

OLD BUSINESS
1. Approval of the LIHTC 2025 Qualified Allocation Plan (QAP)
2. Summary of Executive Director, Board Evaluation for CY2025 ............ 11-48

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
Project Updates

GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS
1. Summer Vista II DE, LLC and Summer Vista III DE, LLC (collectively “Summer

Vista”) - Discussion of Proposed 2025 LIHTC QAP
2. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting: Tuesday, November 04, 2025

@ 12:00 p.m.

ADJOURNMENT



26 CLASSIFIEDS

APPLY NOW!!

APPLY NOW

L
o~
<
= | 5-CAMPCOOK with min, 1 yr.exp. $14.09 PER HOUR* 8 - HEAVY & TRACTOR-TRAILER TRUCK DRIVER w/1 yr. exp. $18.54 PER HR.
o= | Preparesand cooks Filipino, Thai, and various Asian family-style meals for construction crew. Guam Commercial Driver's License required after hire.
= (Must possess a health certificate after hiring.) Drives trucks with capacities greater than 3 tons, including tractor-trailer combinations, to
51 121 -CARPENTERw'rdminwuf.mr. $18.34 PER HOUR** transport & deliver fuel petroleum. Check vehicles to ensure that mechanical, safety &
S | Perorms carpentry duties for residential, commercial and government projects. emergency equipment is in good working order. Follow appropriate safety procedures for
Zc | 83-CEMENTMASON with min. 1 yr. exp. $17.51 PER HOUR** transporting fuel petroleum. Maintain logs of working hours or of vehicle service or repair
& | Peformscement mason dutiesfor residential, commerdial and government projedts. status. Maneuver trucks into loading or unloading positions checking that vehicle is properlz
D | 30-ELECTRICIAN with nin.?yrs.ur. §21.02 PER HOUR** positioned. Obtain signatures for delivered services when required. Operate equipment suc
o | Performselectrician duties for residential, commercial and govemment projects. as truck cab computers, radios or phones to exchange necessary information with bases,
2 | 18-HEAVY EQUIPMENT MECHANIC with min. 2 yrs. exp. $21.77 PER HOUR** supervisors or other drivers. May be in drivin trainin% to understand road way rules &
© | Performs heavy equipmentmechanic duties for residential, commercial and government projects. regulations towards obtaining Guam commercial driver's license & while waiting for delays &
> | 76-HEAVYEQUIPMENT OPERATOR with min. 1 yr. exp. $18.97 PERHOUR** scheduling with the Guam Department of Motor Vehicles.
S | Performs heavy equipment operator duties for residential, commercial and govemment projects. Siiccessfil anlicants must be able 16 dbkain military base access
S | 30-HVAC & REFRIGERATION MECHANIC with min. 2yrs. exp. §21.91 PERHOUR** Caeiad) o ) g i
S | PeformsHVAC& refrigeration mema"'fdm'es for tesidential, commerdial and gavemment projects. Benefits: Roundtrip airfare for offisland hire; board & lodging at $80.00 per week; local
3 | 49-LANDSCAPE GARDENER with min.3 mos.exp. $13.91 PER HOUR** transportation from employer's designated lodging facility to/fr jobsite.

Performs landscape gardener duties for residential, commerdal and govemment projects.

80 - PAINTER with min. 1yr. exp. ) ' $19.82 PER HOUR** The job offer meets all EEO requirements, and initiates a temporary placement. The recuitment

Performs painter duties for residential, commercial and government projeds. associated with this job offer is closely monitored by the Department of Labor. Qualified, available and

20 - PIPEFITTER with min. 2 yrs. exp. , ; $19.48 PER HOUR™ willing U.S. workers are highly encouraged to apply. Should you qualify for the job and are not hired, you

Frcoams el ke for resiepiiel conimerint i Crovemipent pesjec may appeal with the Department of Labor who will independently review the matter.

20 - PLUMBER with min. 2 yrs. exp. $19.48 PERHOUR™* ¥ appe P PRy :

Performs plumber duties for residential, commercial and government projeds. Apply in person at American Job Center

10 - QUALITY CONTROL INSPECTOR with min. 1 yr. exp.; must possess an Associate’s in .

Civil Engineering (may be foreign equivalent) §26.07 PERHOUR** STA, Sonial v, 2 200 GEX PRt Hegtam, Sears

Performs quality control inspector duties for residential, commercial and govemnment projects. apply online at www.hireguam.com; eyword : :

111 - REINFORCING METAL WORKER with min. 1 ¥r exp. $16.98 PER HOUR**

Performs reinforcing metal worker duties for residential, commerdal and government projects.

30 - ROOFER with min. 2 yrs. exp. $17.70 PER HOUR** E GUAM HOUSING AND UR AUTHOR

Peiforms roofer duties for residential, commercial and government projedts. Board of Commissioners Meeting ¢ Tuesday, October 21, 2025 at 12:00 PM.

20 - WELDER with min. 1 yr. exp. $20.30 PER HOUR* This meeting is open to the public via Zoom

Performs welder duties for residential, commercial and govemment projeds. ) - .

= A o X Topic: GHURA Board of Commissioners Meetlmiqn

Verification of qualifications required. Time: October 21, 2025 12:00 PM Guam, Port Moresby

*Special Wage Rate: Work to be performed on DPRI-funded projects and projects covered by Davis Bacon, i i 4 z00m.us/i/882184 okl i13KbHTAF84 ;

Service Contracts Act, and/or Executive Order 14206 will be paid no less than the indicated wage rate but may #nnéoorr;ﬂ:&n;gsb:gsfféso;aﬁh d ‘!_Ls.%azno RHApdtTi HEARSRNIPARL

be paid more where spedal rates apply and may require paid holidays and/or paid sick leave. ceting 1L Rstode:

**For work performed on Sewvice Contract Act projects: ad(ditional benefits of Health and Welfare Benefits of Watch YouTube Live Stream  hitps://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWUOkOmTOFOLYn48ULag

$4.98 per hour up to 40 hours per week; Paid time off up to 80 hours of paid vacation after 1 year of service and

up to 160 hours after 3 years of sewvice; and 11 paid holidays per year, in accordance with the applicable wage AGENDA:

etermination and contract requirements; or if required by employer’s construction contract(s). . ROLLCALL

Successful applicant must be able to obtain military base access. Off-island hires must complete a health Il BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS

screening prior toworking on Guam. Employees are required to take and pass a substance abuse test after Il APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES - September 30, 2025

hire. IV.  NEW BUSINESS

Benefits: Round-trip airfare for off-island hire; Food and lodging provided @ $132,50 per week or lodging Resolution No. FY2026-001; Resolution Approving the Write-Off of Tenant Accounts Receivable

only provided @ $62.50 per week; local transportation from empl?)yer‘s designated Iocﬁ;?ng facility tol! as of September 30, 2025

jobsite; and employer/employee-paid medical insurance provided. V. OLD BUSINESS

The job offer meets all EEQ requirements, and initiates a temporary placement. The recruitment assodiated with 1. Approval of "'? LIHTC 2025 Q“a"ﬁe‘d Allocation Plan (QAP)

this job offer s closely monitored b’v the Department of Labor. Qualified, available and willing U.S. workers are 2.Summary of Director, Board Evaluation for CY2025

ighly encouraged to apply. Should you qualify for the job and are not hired, you may appeal with the VI. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT
Department of Labor who will independently review matter. Project Updates
For the complete job duties, apply in person atthe American Job Center VII. GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS
414 W. Soledad Avenue, Suite 300 GCIC Building Hagatna, Guam 1. Summer Vista Il DE, LLC and Summer Vista Il DE, LLC (collectively “Summer Vista") -
Or apply online at www.hireguam.com; Enter Keyword; 2025-115 Discussion of Proposed 2025 LIHTC QAP

2. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting - Tuesday, November 04, 2025 @ 12:00 p.m.
VIil. ADJOURNMENT

—~— The complete Board packet may be viewed on the GHURA website at www.ghura.org.
’ _o) & m For more information, please contact Audrey Aguon at 475-1378 and for special accommodations,
— - please contact Chief Planner - Designated Section 504 / ADA Coordinator at 475-1322 or TTY 472-3701.

Call us at 671.649.1924 or email: krista@postguam.com This advertisement was paid for by GHURA.

,",’ GUAM POWER AUTHORITY
o ATURIDAT ILEKTRESEDAT GUAHAN
ccu P.0.BOX 2977  HAGATNA, GUAM U.5.A, 96932-2977
sE.sanos  Teleph 2. 671-648-3045/55 or Facsimile 671-648-31 ohi M, Benavente, PE.
CONSTRUCHON & Em“s'ou I:}nljlc:aﬁ::\;“ elephone No 4 345 55 or Facsimile 671-648-3165 ”Ge“:erB:lMina‘gélpl
INVITATION FOR BID
MAJORAND MINOR RENOVATIONS This notice is paid for by the GUAM POWER AUTHORITY REVENUE FUNDS
¥ |
Public Law 26-12
HOME REMODELING BID NO.; PRE-BID/SITE VISIT TIME; DUE DATE: TIME: DESCRIPTION:
DRIVEWAYS (NON-MANDATORY)
PAINTING GPA-076-25 10/21/2025 9:00 AM. 1112/2025 9:00AM. Gloria B. Nelson Public Service Building
Fire Alarm System, Wet Sprinkler System
FENCE BUILDING Maintenance, Repair, Certification Contract (Revenue)
GPA-077-25 10/21/2025 2:00PM. Streetlight Bracket, Mast Arm (Revenue)
FREE ESTIMATES GPA078-25 10/21/2025 11:00AM.  Pole Mounted Transformers (Revenue)
GPA-079-25 10/22/2025 .00 AM. Pad Mounted Transformers (Revenue)
GPA-080-25 10/22/2025 10:00 AM. Pad Mounted Transformers (Revenue)
CONTRACTOR LICENSED
- Bid packages may be picked up at the GPWA Procurement Office, Room 1071, 1st. Flaor, Gloria B. Nelson Public Services Building, 688 Route 15, Mangilao, Guam
'CI"1 6-1 239 96913. Al?interested grms should register with our GPA's Procurement Division to be able to participate in the bid, Please call our office at (671)648-3054/ 3055
to register. Registration is required to ensure that all "Amendments and Special Reminders" are communicated to all bidders throughout the bid process.
curement instructions are posted on the Authority’s web site at hitps://notices.guam.gov.
CALL CHEN Pro tinstructi posted on the Authority's web site at https://notices.guam.g
/s/ John M. Benavente, P.E.
671-685-5998 General Manager




fHo

Government of Guam

PUBLIC NOTICES Portal

First Notice: GHURA Board of Commissioners Meeting - >Previouspage > Al Nt
10/21/2025 @ 12:00pm ChST

Quick Links: View ALL Notices | Posted Today | Posted This Week | Posted This Month | More Filters...

First Notice: GHURA Board of Commissioners Meeting -
10/21/2025 @ 12:00pm ChST

ANNOUNCEMENT

 Posted on: 10/14/202510:01 AM

Posted by: Julie Lujan

Department(s): GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY (GHURA)
& Division(s):

% Notice Topic(s): BOARD MEETING

# Types of Notice: ANNOUNCEMENT

i For Audience(s): PUBLIC

# Share this notice

HURA Board of Commissioners Meeting will be held on Tuesday, October 21, 2025 at 12:00pm ChST. This
meeting is open to the public and is available via Zoom as well as GHURA's YouTube Live Stream Channel.
Please click on the link below for more information.

[app/webroot/userfiles/files/AD%20GHURA%275%200ctober%2021%202025%20B0C%20Mtg, %20Advertis
ement.pdf



20 CLASSIFIEDS

GUAM DAILY POST ¢ SUNDAY, OCTOBER 19, 2025

CONCRETE PUMP OPERATOR

Requirements:

Must have a “C" License, DOT medical
certificate and have experience working asa
Concrete Pump Operator. Must have
military base access.

Qualified Applicant may send resume or
apply in person at:

@ CORE TECH
V INTERNATIONAL

388 South Marine Corps Drive, Ste 400,
Tamuning, Gu 96913
Tel: (671) 473-5000 Fax; (671)473-5500
Email; main@coretechintl.com

We are an Equal Opponum’hg' Employer.
This job offer is open to all qualified United States
workers without regard to race, sex, color, religion,

disability, national origin, or age.

JOB ANNOUNCEMENT

ACCOUNTANT:  Bachelor's Degree in
Accountancy (may be foreign equivalent). 60
months of experience as an Accountant. The
Accountant provides expertise, knowledge
and skills in the field of financial accounting.
Responsible for ensuring that all business
transactions have been properly accounted
for, accurately and completely reflected on
the company's books Perform other related
duties as assigned or requested by the
President or the General Manager.

Send resume to:
JOETEN MOTOR COMPANY INC.
P.0. Box 500137 Saipan, MP 96950
Email Address: hrd@joeten.com

OFFICE OF MICHAEL J GATEWOOD LLC
MICHAEL J. GATEWOOD

michael@gatewoodlegal.com

101E Chalan Santo Papa, Suite 102
Hagatna, GU 96910

Tel No. 671.488.6285

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF GUAM
IN THE MATTER OF THE ESTATE OF
SEGUNDOT. BARCENA and

JOVITA TANO BARCENA,
Deceased.

PROBATE CASE NO. PR 210-23
NOTICE TO CREDITORS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN by Kevin Chieng
Barcena, Administrator of the Estate of
SEGUNDO T. BARCENA and JOVITA TANO
BARCENA deceased, to the creditors of, and all
persons having claims against said Estate or
against said Decedents, that within sixty (60)
calendar days aler the date of the first
publication of this notice, they either file them
with necessary vouchers in the Office of Clerk of
the Superior Court of Guam, or exhibit them
with  the necessary vouchers to said
Administrator or his attorneys of record, OFFICE
OF MICHAEL J GATEWOOD LLC, 101E Chalan
Santo Papa, Suite 102, Hagatna, GU 96910, the
same being the place for the transaction of the
business of said Estate.

DATED: Hagatiia, Guam October 10, 2025.
[s/ MICHAEL J. GATEWOOD

OFFICE OF MICHAEL J GATEWOQD LLC
MICHAEL J. GATEWOOD

michael@gatewood|egal.com
101E Chalan $anto Papa, Suite 102
Hagatna, GU 96910

Tel No. 671.488.6285

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF GUAM
IN THE MATTER OF THE ESTATE OF
MARIE REYES NELSON,
Deceased.

PROBATE CASE NO. PR 128-25

NOTICE TO CREDITORS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN by Crystal Rona
Nelson, Executor of the Estate of MARIE REYES
NELSON deceased, to the creditors of, and all
persons having claims against said Estate or
against sald Decedent, that within sixty (60)
calendar days after the date of the first
publication of this notice, they either file them
with necessary vouchers in the Office of Clerk of
the Superior Court of Guam, or exhibit them
with the necessary vouchers to said Executor or
her attorneys of record, OFFICE OF MICHAEL J
GATEWOOD LLC, 101E Chalan Santo Papa,
Suite 102, Hagétia, GU 96910, the same
being the place for the transaction of the
business of said Estate.

DATED: Hagatia, Guam October 16, 2025.
{s/ MICHAEL J. GATEWOOD

THE LAW OFFICES OF DUNCAN G, McCULLY, P.C.
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
434 W_O'BRIEN DRIVE, SUITE 201
ADA CLIFFLINE OFFICE BUILDING C
HAGATNA, GUAM 96910
TEL(671)477-7418 FAX{671)472-1201
IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF GUAM
IN THE MATTER OF THE ESTATE OF
MARIE ROSE TAISAGUE,
Deceased.
PROBATE CASE NO.PR0131-25
AMENDED NOTICE OF HEARING ON PETITION
FOR LETTERS OF ADMINISTRATION
THIS NOTICE IS REQUIRED BY LAW. YOU ARE NOT
REQUIRED TO APPEAR IN COURT UNLESS YOU DESIRE
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that PERSONAL
FINANCE CENTER has filed herein its Petition for
Letters of Administration upon the Estate of
MARIE ROSE TAISAGUE, deceased, and that OCT
29 2025 at 9:00 am. in the courtroom of the
Superior Court of Guam, Hagatia, Guam has
been set for the hearing of said petition and all
persons interested are hereby notified to appear
at the time and place set for said hearing, and
show cause, if any they have, why the petition
should not be granted.
Reference is hereby made to the said petition
for further particulars.
Dated this 18th day of September. 2025.

JANICE M. CAMACHO-PEREZ
Clerk, Superior Court of Guam
By: s/ Pauline |. Untalan
Chamber/Courtroom Clerk
You may appear in person at Judge Dana A Gutierrez's Courtroam,
120 Wezt O'Brien Drive, Hagatna, Guam or you may partiopate via

Zoom by logging onto hitps://guamcourts-org.zoom.us and enter
the Meeting 1D: 839 7874 0380 and Passcode; 189701 For
technical assistance, please call (671) 475-3207 five (5) minutes

|
A

ISLAND
WIDE
HOME

DELIVERY

Get the most local
print content delivered
to your doorstep daily.

JOB ANNOQUNCEMENT

Opening for Accountant with/ Fargo Pacific, Inc. in Tamuning, GU. Min Regs: Bachelor's degree in
Accounting (may be foreign equivalent); one (1) year of experience as an Accountant or Auditor (any job
title), and nine (9) months of experience using QuickBooks or other software program for accounting
applications. Assists the President and Office Manager in preparing the company's annual budget and
prepares periodic reports that compare budgeted costs to actual costs. Analyzes finandial information and
prepares annual, periodic, and as-needed Balance Sheets and Profit and Loss Statements. Prepares various
cash management reports, including periodic financial reports comparing actual costs with budgeted
costs; cost accounting reports detailing costs of operations for the company’s construction projects and
production elements, and assists with various other financial-related requirements for the company's
construction projects. Uses QuickBooks in performing job duties. Send CV by mail to P.O. Box 2492
Hagatna, GU 96932 or email to delacruz_feli@fargogu.com. Verification of qualifications required.

THE GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
Board of Commissioners Meeting * Tuesday, October 21, 2025 at 12:00 PM.
This meeting is open to the public via Zoom

Topic: GHURA Board of Commissioners Meeting
Time: October 21,2025 12:00 PM Guam, Port Moresby

Join Zoom Meeting https://us06web.zoom.us/j/882184514202pwd =wh7{Pnsjr3KbHTAF84R9eHI1PoXyja. 1
Meeting ID: 858 7288 3740 » Passcode: 102770

Watch YouTube Live Stream  hitps://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWUOkOmTOFOLYn48ULag

AGENDA:
. ROLLCALL
Il.  BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS
Il APPROVALOF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES - September 30, 2025
V. NEW BUSINESS
Resolution No. FY2026-001; Resolution Approving the Write-Off of Tenant Accounts Recelvable
as of September 30, 2025
V. OLD BUSINESS
1. Approval of the LIHTC 2025 Qualified Allocation Plan (QAP)
2. Summary of Director, Board Evaluation for CY2025
VI. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT
Project Updates
VII. GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS

1. Summer Vista Il DE, LLC and Summer Vista Il DE, LLC (collectively “Summer Vista") -
Discussion of Proposed 2025 LIHTC QAP

2. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting - Tuesday, November 04, 2025 @ 12:00 p.m.
VIIl. ADJOURNMENT

The complete Board packet may be viewed on the GHURA website at www.ghura.org.
For more information, please contact Audrey Aguion at 475-1378 and for special accommedations,
please contact Chief Planner - Designated Section 504 / ADA Coordinator at 475-1322 or TTY 472-3701.

This advertisement was paid for by GHURA.

Contact us at
customerservice@postguam.com

Need to get your
message out there?

Our sales team has new opportunities for you!

In print or online we have you covered at The Guam Daily Post!
email at krista@postguam.com for inquiries.

ity POST




Gavernment of Guam

PUBLIC NOTICES Portal

Qi Lk View ALL Notices | Axted Today | Posted Thes Week | Posted Thes Month | lore Fiiars._

Use these quick fters to narrow your search,
Departmensis Divisionts} Nothce Topkisk

Notices Posted Today Bmce

Second Notice: GHURA Board of Commissioners Meeting -
1012172025 @ 12:00pm ChST

AKNQUNCEMENT

3 estad o 1017705 0918 A

@ Posted b Lo

B Department(sk: GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY {GHURA)
o Divisionist

" Notie Tepicsy 00 LEETAG

B Typesof Netiog A0 CEEN

¥ For Audhncaist FUELIC

o hany D PCH

¥izds WORE JEIALS




0““M~ k@p
% BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
5" % REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING
2 z 12:00 P.M., September 30, 2025
"‘% F GHURA'’s Main Office (via Zoom)
2y, - z-""(b 1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana
AGENDA

I. CALL TO ORDER
Pursuant to the Open Government Law of Guam and the Bylaws of the Authority, the Board of
Commissioners’ regularly scheduled board meeting was called to order at 12:04 P.M., Tuesday,
September 30, 2025, at the GHURA Sinajana Main Office, 1st floor Conference room. Acting
Chairman Sanchez indicated that 4 of 6 members of the Board of Commissioners were present,
representing a quorum and that the meeting would proceed as scheduled.

Viewed ZOOM: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85872883740?pwd=fIr6KzYE687069CIWFXgTGqc2eFkkF.1
virtually via YOUTUBE: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWUOkOmTOFOLYn48ULag
BOC Dr. John Rivera, Chairman Virtual O In-Person [
Commissioners | Nate Sanchez, Vice Chairman Virtual O In-Person ™
Attendance Anisia Delia, Commissioner Virtual M In-Person [
Emilia Rice, Commissioner Virtual O In-Person O
Victor Torres, Commissioner Virtual O In-Person ™M
Karl Corpus, Resident Commissioner Virtual O In-Person M
*Request to attend meeting virtually was submitted via email and acknowledged by Acting Chairman
Sanchez.
GHURA Elizabeth F. Napoli, Executive Director [ Julie Lujan, MIS Administrator[d  Carlo Ongklungel M
Management/ | Fernando B. Esteves, Deputy Director M Sonny Perez, AE Manager O Thalia Pablo M
Staff Audrey Aguon, Special Assistant M Frances Danieli, Controller ¥
Narcissa Ada, AMP1 Manager M Katherine Taitano, RP&E Chief Planner ™M
Gina Cura, AMP2 Manager O Dr. Kimberly Bersamin, HR Administrator M
Patrick Bamba, AMP3 Manager M Antonio Camacho, Housing Procurement Admin. M
Philomena San Nicolas, AMP4 Manager [0 Pearly Mendiola, GT Manager I
Jolyn Terlaje, CD Manager OJ Nicole Alejandro, Section 8 Administrator [J
Miguel Fernandez, AE O Michael Ricuyal, AE [ Ervin Santiago O
Maria Cherry Canete, AE I Patrick Luces ¥ Andrew Manglona M

Legal Counsel

Eliseo M. Florig Jr., Legal Counsel for GHURA M

Public

Ana Sahagon and Family/ Malcolm Stiles/ R. Marsil Johnson

Il. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS

1stPrinting - Tuesday, September 23, 2025
2nrd Printing - Sunday, September 28, 2025

ACKNOWLEDGED BY ACTING CHAIRMAN SANCHEZ.

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 30, 2025 Page 1 of 13



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85872883740?pwd=fJr6KzYE687069C9WFXgTGqc2eFkkF.1

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES: [556/25] Commissioner Torres moved
to approve the board meeting minutes of August 26, 2025 and September 16, 2025,
subject to corrections. Commissioner Corpus seconded the motion. There were no
objections. Motion passed.

NEW BUSINESS:

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION
. Mr. Malcolm Stiles- | [557/25] Acting Executive Director
Moved to Item #1 Esteves requested to have Mr. Malcolm

from Old Business Stiles be first to present before the board.
Mr. Stiles was scheduled on the General
Discussion/Announcements section of
the agenda on pages 87-93 in the GHURA
Board of Commissioners (BoC)
September 30, 2025 meeting packet,
found also on the GHURA website,

www.ghura.org.

There were no objections by the board
members.

Mr. Malcolm Stiles stated the following:

e Heis an Asan property owner which
is located adjacent to the property
that was owned by GHURA

e Property was surveyed

¢ Boundary line was located between
the two properties and cuts through a
portion of his house.

e There was an error in the survey

e More than two years ago, he met with
GHURA to discuss how to rectify the
issue regarding the boundary line

e During the meeting, it was stated by a
GHURA staff that discussions
regarding the transfer of the GHURA
property to Guam Waterworks was
ongoing.

e Allin attendance of the meeting
agreed that the transfer to Guam

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 30, 2025 Page 2 of 13



http://www.ghura.org/

AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

Waterworks would be the best
option.

He offered to pay to have the
properties resurveyed, prepare new
plans, and recorded

All he wanted was for GHURA to
show its support and work with him
to correct the situation

He did engage the surveyor, he
prepared new plans, and spent four
to five thousand dollars.

The plans needed GHURA's signature,
then it would be forwarded to the
Dept. of Land Management to be
recorded.

A few amendments were made to the
new plans, but it is was what Dept. of
Land Management wanted to see.
GHURA stated that they needed to
look into it more

It had been two years with no
responses from GHURA staff

He was surprised to discover that
GHURA had gone ahead and
transferred the property to Guam
Waterworks.

He suggested to the board that
GHURA sign the plans, have it
recorded, and write an amended
document to Guam Waterworks
stating that there was an oversight
and would now cite the new plan
instead of the old plan as being the
description of the property in the
Deed of Transfer.

He stated that it was important for
him, Guam Waterworks, and GHURA
to work together

He stated that all that was needed
was a signature and to be recorded
and it would have been done.

He stated that GHURA chose not to
address his concerns but hopes to

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 30, 2025

Page 3 of 13




AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

find a way to get the situation cleared

up.
Mr. Eliseo Florig, Jr., GHURA Legal Counsel,
indicated that he did not believe that Mr.
Stiles provided testimony, but rather
information for the board with regard to
what is going on and added that testimony is
only taken when he is put under oath not to
perjure himself.

Mr. Florig stated the following:

e This matter first came to him when
he became in-house counsel on or
about March of 2023 through several
discussions with the CD Division and
with Executive Director Napoli

e No mention had ever been made
regarding a directive or directions
given to Mr. Stiles to survey the area
using his personal funds

e GHURA takes a stance on Mr. Stiles’s
description of the boundary issue
being easy to complete

e There may be another owner who is
deceased

e Attempts at contacting heirs have
been unsuccessful

e This issue should have been
addressed during the Urban Renewal
stage, but was not

e Mr. Stiles requested GHURA's
assistance

e GHURA tried in earnest to assist Mr.
Stiles to either allow him to purchase
the sliver or property or to allow him
to correct any boundary issues

e Notbeing able to locate the heirs of
the property made it difficult to
move forward

e On or about August 15, 2025, as
indicated on pg. 87 of the board
packet, a letter addressed to Mr.

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 30, 2025

Page 4 of 13




AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

Stiles indicated the issues concerning
the property

e Due to the issues concerning the
property, GWA requested from
GHURA the ownership of the
property

e On or about November 18, 2024,
Grant Deed was submitted to GWA

e GHURA no longer has possession or
jurisdiction of the property

e Unfortunately, Mr. Stiles’s request
for GHURA to work with Guam
Waterworks to address the issues
regarding the property, is beyond
GHURA'’s ability to do so

e GHURA’s Community Develop
Division is willing to escort Mr. Stiles
to GWA to assist in discussions
regarding possible solutions

e Asindicated in the letter to Mr. Stiles,
this matter is considered closed by
GHURA

Acting Executive Director Esteves added that
GHURA will assist in any way, but that no
employee has the legal authority to transfer
property. He also added that the Resolution
passed by the board in 2021 directed the
property to be transferred and was beyond
the authority of the executive director or the
deputy director to not transfer the property
to GWA. He stated that there had been no
evidence to substantiate the claim of
encroachment of the original survey line.
There has been no evidence, at the time of
Urban Renewal, to support the idea that the
boundaries are inaccurate.

Acting Chairman Sanchez indicated that the
board would like to work within its legal
boundaries to assist Mr. Stiles in rectifying
this property issue. However, the issue is no
longer in GHURA's hands and cannot offer
any more than what was discussed. Mr.
Florig recommended that Mr. Stiles schedule

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 30, 2025

Page 5 of 13




AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

an appointment with GWA to discuss his
property concerns. Once a scheduled
appointment has been made, Mr. Stiles may
contact the executive team at GHURA for
assistance with discussions with GWA.

Commissioner Corpus indicated that the
letter addressed to Mr. Stiles stated that
GHURA would aid him in meeting with GWA
regarding his concerns. Mr. Florig indicated
that to qualify the letter that was written by
Executive Director Napolj, the letter
addressed to Mr. Stiles was subject to the
research that had been done by the CD
Division and to provide context for GWA
regarding the boundary lines. This would be
the extent of the GHURA staff’s assistance for
Mr. Stiles.

Mr. Stiles indicated that he would like
GHURA to be more proactive in the process.
Mr. Florig stated that he had been proactive
and had been in contact with Ms. Teresa
Rojas, GWA'’s Legal Counsel. He stated that
Ms. Rojas is aware of Mr. Stiles’s concerns
regarding the property and the situation.

Acting Director Esteves stated that if Mr.
Stiles initiates a petition and includes
GHURA, the GHURA management can reach
out to the GWA management to make them
aware of the situation. However, GHURA
cannot take a position, for or against, or
advocate for any individual. Acting Director
Esteves added that while GHURA has
surrendered its rights to the property, there
are other claimants to the same property so
the resolution that Mr. Stiles seeks is not as
easy as it seems.

Acting Chairman Sanchez called for a recess
at 12:57PM.

No action taken

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 30, 2025

Page 6 of 13




AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

V. OLD BUSINESS:

2. Resolution No.
FY2025-033-
Resolution
Commending Ms.
Ana Sahagon,
Interviewer Clerk,
for her Dedication
and Contributions
to the Guam
Housing and Urban
Renewal Authority
(GHURA)

Acting Chairman Sanchez reconvened the
board meeting at 1:00PM.

Acting Executive Director Esteves requested
to move to Old Business, Item #3.

[559/25] Acting Director Esteves read
Resolution No. FY2025-033- Resolution
Commending Ms. Ana Sahagon,
Interviewer Clerk, for her Dedication and
Contributions to the Guam Housing and
Urban Renewal Authority (GHURA) on
pgs. 47-48 in the September 30, 2025
GHURA Board of Commissioners (BoC)
meeting packet which was also found on
the GHURA website, www.ghura.org.

Mrs. Narcissa Ada, AMP 1 Manager,
congratulated and thanked Ms. Sahagon for
her dedication and commitment to her team
and to the families that she served.

On behalf of the board, Acting Chairman
Sanchez also thanked Ms. Sahagon for her
years of hard work and commitment.

[558/25] Acting
Chairman Sanchez
acknowledged Acting
Executive Director
Esteves’s requests.

[560/25]
Commissioner Torres
moved to approve
Resolution No.
FY2025-033-
Resolution
Commending Ms. Ana
Sahagon, Interviewer
Clerk, for her
Dedication and
Contributions to the
Guam Housing and
Urban Renewal
Authority (GHURA).
Commissioner Corpus
seconded the motion.
There were no
objections. Motion
passed unanimously.

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 30, 2025

Page 7 of 13



http://www.ghura.org/

AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

3. Intent of Award-IFB
GHURA-25-12; Lead
Abatement for
AMPs 1, 2,and 4

[561/25] Acting Director Esteves read the
Intent of Award-IFB GHURA-25-12; Lead
Abatement for AMPs 1, 2, and 4 on pg. 44-
46 in the September 30, 2025 GHURA
Board of Commissioners (BoC) meeting
packet which was also found on the
GHURA website, www.ghura.org.

Commissioner Delia asked why a bid was not
submitted for Base Bid Item #1. Acting
Director Esteves indicated that Base Bid
Item #1 was sent, but bids were not
submitted. Mr. Antonio Camacho, Housing
Procurement Administrator, stated that
reasons for “No Bid” were unknown.

Commissioner Corpus indicated that the
government estimate was at $1,771,200.00
and asked if each Base Bid Item had
individual estimates. Mr. Camacho stated
that the government estimate was the total
cost but was broken down in the
procurement record. Commissioner Corpus
requested that the breakdown be read into
the record.

Acting Director Esteves read the following
Lead Based Paint Abatement Base Bids:

e Government Estimate for AMP1-
$1,797,840.00

e Government Estimate for AMP2-
$355,806.00

e Government Estimate for AMP4-
$178,200.00

Commissioner Corpus indicated that the
total government estimates for the AMPs
was more than the total government
estimate listed in the packet. Mr. Andrew

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 30, 2025

Page 8 of 13



http://www.ghura.org/

AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

Manglona, AE Planner, indicated that the
total amount of all three bid items came to
about $2.3 million. Acting Director Esteves
added that the $1.7 million that the board is
considering, reflects Bid Item#1. He
requested that the team amend the record
for the correct calculations. After correction
was made, Acting Director Esteves read the
total government estimate amount as
$2,331,846.00, which is the aggregate of Bid
[tems one through three.

[562 /25]
Commissioner Corpus
moved to approve
Intent of Award IFB-
GHURA-25-12; Lead
Abatement for Base
Bid Item #2 at
$395,000.00 and Base
Bid Item #3, AMP4, for
$140,500.00 for a total
of $535,500.00 with
corrections to the
government estimate,
Bid Item #2 with a
project timeline of two
hundred consecutive
calendar days and Bid
Item #3 with a project
timeline of sixty
consecutive days.
Contract is not to
exceed the amount of
$535,500.00.
Commissioner Torres
seconded the motion.
There were no
objections. Motion
passed unanimously.

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 30, 2025

Page 9 of 13




AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION
4. LIHTC 2025 [563/25] Acting Director Esteves directed

Qualified Allocation | the commissions to pgs. 1-43 in

Plan (QAP) September 30, 2025, GHURA Board of

Commissioners (BoC) meeting packet
which was also found on the GHURA
website, www.ghura.org. He stated the
following:

¢ Disagreements created delays of
the issuance of the 2025 QAP

e Itis GHURA’s intent to try to issue
the 2025 QAP to avoid risking
losing the 2024 tax credits

Ms. Katherine Taitano, RP&E Chief Planner,
stated the following:

e Presented the draft of the 2025
Qualified Allocation Plan (QAP)

e Requested approval from the board
to release the Draft QAP for public
comment

e Until the public has the opportunity
to engage with comment and board
approves the final draft of the QAP,
the QAP and the application will not
be issued.

e The timeline is abbreviated.

e Anticipated completion of the entire
process is early December

e On page seven in the board packet is
a timetable that outlines essential due
dates.

Acting Director Esteves indicated that the
board made the determination based on the
recommendation of the review panel to
reserve 2023 credits, under the 2024 QAP to
Flores Rosa Gardens LLC for its proposed

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 30, 2025

Page 10 of 13



http://www.ghura.org/

AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

development. However, due to delays and
disagreements, the 2023 credits were
unfortunately lost. He added that GHURA
would like to honor the board’s
determination on the project itself and
award the 2024 credits through the 2025
QAP to make up the difference in the 2023
credits that were lost. The total that would
be available for new applications and
competitive proposals is $5,021, 880.00

Commissioner Corpus asked if there were
major changes made to the QAP. Acting
Director Esteves indicated that the Appeals
Process was incorporated directly into the
Action Plan, clarified the language regarding
the process, and added a good standing
requirement. Ms. Taitano indicated that they
had also incorporated a proposal on tie
breaking procedures.

Commissioner Torres requested that a
watermark be added to indicate that the
document is a draft.

Acting Director Esteves indicated that page
seven, section 2A, highlights key dates.
October 14 will be to approve the issuance of
the QAP. There will be a one-month
timeframe for submissions of applications.
Application acceptance will close and there
will be a ten-day review period. A
recommendation will go to the board on
December 2, 2025. On December 9, 2025
board meeting will be when the board will
decide on the award. Between December 9th
and 31st, documents and letters will be
issued and checklists will be reviewed to

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 30, 2025

Page 11 of 13




AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

determine whether the process has been
executed properly.

Ms. Taitano added that the objective is to
improve the process and be better prepared
moving forward.

[564/25]
Commissioner Corpus
moved to approve the
2025 Low Income
Housing Tax Credit
Qualified Allocation
Plan for October 1,
2025- October 13,
2025, the public
comment period.
Commissioner Torres
seconded the motion.
There were no
objections. Motion
passed unanimously.

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 30, 2025

Page 12 of 13




VI. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

AGENDA ITAM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

1. Project Updates

[565/25] Acting Director Esteves indicated
that there were no updates.

No action taken

VIl. GENERAL DISCUSSION/ANNOUNCEMENTS/ADJOURNMENT:

AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTION

1. Next proposed
scheduled Board
Meeting:
Tuesdays,
October 14, 2025

[566/25]
Commissioner Torres
moved to adjourn the
September 30, 2025
board meeting.
Commissioner Delia
seconded the motion.
Meeting was
adjourned at 1:39PM.

SEAL

Elizabeth F. Napoli

Board Secretary/Executive Director

Date

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 30, 2025

Page 13 of 13




Kathleen J. Taitingfong _ _

From: Audrey Aguon <aaaguon@ghura.org> on behalf of Audrey Aguon

Sent: Tuesday, September 30, 2025 2:05 PM

To: Kathleen J. Taitingfong

Subject: Acting Chairman Sanchez's approval for virtual attendance for Commissioner Delia

Please include this thread in the next packet

(6#1) 4¥5-1378

Guam Heuding & Unban Renewal Authouly
117 Bien Venida Avenue, Ginajana, GU 96910

From: Eliseo M. Florig, Jr. <emflorig@ghura.org>
Sent: Tuesday, September 30, 2025 11:49 AM

To: Audrey Aguon <aaaguon@ghura.org>

Subject: Fwd: GHURA's September 30, 2025 BOC Mtg.

FYI

Eliseo M. Florig, Jr., Esq.

In-House Counsel

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
Aturidat Ginima’ Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan
Administration / Executive / Audit and Compliance
117 Bien Venida Avenue

Sinajana, GU 96910

Tel: (671) 477-9851

Fax: (671) 300-7565

TTY: (671) 472-3701

Email: emflorig@ghura.org

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This email and any files transmitted with it may be
legally privileged and confidential and are intended only for the use of the individual or

1



entity named above. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any
review, dissemination or copying of this email, or taking action in reliance on the contents
of this information, is strictly prohibited. If you received this transmission in error, please
notify GHURA immediately by email or telephone to arrange for the return of this email
and any files to GHURA, or to verify it has been deleted from your system.

—————————— Forwarded message ---------

From: Nate Sanchez "

Date: Tue, Sep 30, 2025 at 11:37 AM

Subject: Re: GHURA's September 30, 2025 BOC Mtg.
To: Eliseo M. Florig, Jr. <emflorig@ghura.org>

Yes, | approve.

Thank you Commissioner Delia and Mr. Florig.

OnTue, Sep 30, 2025 at 10:54 AM Eliseo M. Florig, Jr. <emflorig@ghura.org> wrote:
Good morning, Acting Chairman,

Commissioner Delia has requested to attend today's board meeting
via video teleconferencing (Zoom). If you haven't already, please
respond to her directly prior to the meeting approving her request
if that's your intention. Pursuant to 5 GCA Section 43121, "Such
request shall be attached to the minutes of said meeting." Thus, our
request to use email in requesting for and approving such requests.
Please let me know if you have any questions. Thanks.

Best regards,

Eliseo M. Florig, Jr., Esq.

In-House Counsel

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
Aturidat Ginima’ Yan Rinueban Studat Guahan
Administration / Executive / Audit and Compliance
117 Bien Venida Avenue

Sinajana, GU 96910

Tel: (671) 477-9851




Fax: (671) 300-7565
TTY: (671) 472-3701
Email: emflorig@ghura.org

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This email and any files transmitted with it may be
legally privileged and confidential and are intended only for the use of the individual or
entity named above. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any
review, dissemination or copying of this email, or taking action in reliance on the contents
of this information, is strictly prohibited. If you received this transmission in error, please
notify GHURA immediately by email or telephone to arrange for the return of this email
and any files to GHURA, or to verify it has been deleted from your system.

---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: Anisia Delia - -

Date: Tue, Sep 30, 2025 at 8:32 AM

Subject: Re: GHURA's September 30, 2025 BOC Mtg.

To: Kathleen J. Taitingfong <kathleen@ghura.org>

Cc: JRivera <, . , Nate Sanchez « >, Emilia Rice

< >, Victor Robert Hara Torres >, Karl Corpus
< >, Elizabeth Napoli <efnapoli@ghura.org>, Fernando Esteves

<fbesteves@ghura.org>, Audrey Aguon <aaaguon@ghura.org>, Eliseo M. Florig Jr.
<emflorig@ghura.org>

Hafa adai,
Requesting to attend this meeting via Zoom.
Thank you

Anisia

On Sep 29, 2025, at 10:24 AM, Kathleen J. Taitingfong <kathleen@ghura.org> wrote:

Hafa Adai Commissioners!

Attached for your review and information is the Board Packet for tomorrow's board
meeting. Audrey will be sending the Board Minutes at a later time. Please respond to this email to
confirm your attendance. Thank you!



Topic: GHURA BoC Meeting, Tuesday, September 30, 2025, @12PM

Time: Sep 30, 2025 12:00 PM Guam, Port Moreshy

Hostis inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.

Join Zoom Meeting

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/858728837407?pwd=fJr6KzYE687069COWFXgTGqc2eFkkF.1

Meeting ID: 858 7288 3740

Passcode: 102770

One tap mobile
+16465588656,,858728837404,,,,*102770# US (New York)

+16469313860,,858728837404#,,,,*102770# US

Join instructions

hitps://us06web.zoom.us/meetings/85872883740/invitations?signature=Qwj0xLXlsv8jgt5c4
DzgVwYTXQpFz9n18zU_JVB-jWI

Watch YouTube Live Stream

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWUOKkOmMTOFOLYn48ULag




Respectfully,

Rathteen Taitingfong

Data Control Clerk Il
GHURA's ADMIN Division

671-475-1376

kathleen@ghura.org

<Board Packet of September 30, 2025 BOC Mtg..pdf>



Moved By:

GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
RESOLUTION NO. FY2026-001

Seconded By:

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WRITE-OFF OF TENANT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

RESOLVED,

the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority (GHURA) is the Guam public housing authority that provides
decent homes and suitable living environments for Guam families of low income to afford to pay for safe,
sanitary and decent dwelling accommodations; and

the governance and well-being of GHURA is vested in the Board of Commissioners (BOC) and empowered
by 12 Guam Code Annotated, Chapter 5, Section 5104; and

BOC Resolution No. FY2018-002 Resolution Adopting the Write-Off Policy for Uncollectible Accounts for
GHURA Rental Properties; and

in the normal course of business, the Authority is involved in transactions that result in monies being owed to
GHURA for which they are unable to collect, and as necessary,

the Property Site Managers and Section 8 Administrator submit summaries of debts considered for write-off
to prevent overstating of assets which are affecting the Authority’s financial performance; and

currently, GHURA's receivables include outstanding accounts, which have remained in GHURA's books for
over 90 days as of September 30, 2025, as indicated below; and

Property Site Write-Off Amount

AMP 1 $ 39,583.52

AMP 2 $ 1,155.00

AMP 3 $ 5,591.15

AMP 4 $64,502.69
$110,832.36

GHURA, through the Property Site Managers and Section 8 Administrators, exert diligent collection efforts in
pursuit of outstanding receivables, and although ongoing collection efforts are abandoned on these accounts,
GHURA reserves the right and duty to collect should the opportunity arise; and

it is in accordance with GHURA's procedure and good business practices to write-off accounts receivables
after all reasonable collection procedures have been exhausted and there is not a reasonable expectation that
the accounts will be collected; now, therefore be it

that the BOC approves writing off $110,832.36 of GHURA receivables after all reasonable collection
procedures have been exhausted and there is not a reasonable expectation that the accounts will be collected.

IN A SCHEDULED BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM - OCTBER 21, 2025
PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES:

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:
ABSTAINED:

(SEAL)

| hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and
correct copy of a Resolution duly adopted by the Guam Housing
and Urban Renewal Authority Board of Commissioners on
October 21, 2025.

Fernando B. Esteves
Board Secretary / Executive Director, Acting

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025 PAGE 1 of 48



AN RA
& %‘Q
— >
e : Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
% i Aturidat Ginima’ Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan
$& 5 117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajana, GU 96910
Qg );f Phone: (671) 477-9851 - Fax: (671) 300-7565 - TTY: (671)472-3701 EXUAL HOUSING
*1962* Website: www.ghura.org OFFORTUHITY
September 16, 2025
Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero
Govemor of Guam
Joshua F. Tenorio §
Lt. Governor of Guam \
TO: Frances Danieli, Controller
John J. Rivera
Chairman
Nathanael P. Sanchiez FROM: Property Site Manager, AMP 1
Vice Chairman
Anisia S. Delia SUBJECT: Recommend to Write-Off Tenant Accounts Receivables

Commissioner

Emilia F. Rice
Commissioner . . . e
| have reviewed AMP1’s Tenant Account Receivables and attached is the listing of accounts

Victor R. Torres recommended for write-off due to no response from former residents. These accounts have
Commissioner been close through Sept. 30, 2025 TAR balances of $39,418.52 with payment or adjustment

applied to include additional DRT fees of $165.00 totaling $39,583.52
Karl E. Corpus

Resident Commissioner < ; ; o i ;
These inactive account balances are affecting the Authority’s financial performance

Elizabeth F. Napoli therefore; | recommend that these balances be written off and forwarded to the Department
Executive Director of Revenue and Taxation for collection.

Narcissa P. Ada
Property Site Manager, AMP 1

Fernando B. Esteves
Deputy Director

Attachments

GHURA does not discriminate against persons with disabilities.
The Chief Planner has been designated as Section 504 Coordinator.

Board Meeting of O&toBE}"SY i Facted at the above address and telephone numbers. PAGE 2 of 48



VaV 'd VSSIDUVN :Ag pasedaid

2S'€856E $ | 00°S9T $ | zs'81v'6E = $ |(00°s£5°T) - $ | 00°0€ $ | 00°0€ $ 120°£5L°62 $ | 0S'9LT'TT $ “IVIOL
T
uodauuodsig Aynn
ajep o: d 1esa 7Tt . S ~ g . _ _ o . I l I
1ep 0} asuodsal annedaN| 0£LZT'S $ oot $|oczr's $ [(000sT) $ $|oceLz's  $|(ooct) $ | sezoz/st/g V2OT/TZ/E || sauendwion-uoy | SEOE/E/8 | unew 8
juay Jo JuawAhed or
a3ep 03 asuods: eds '689" i 719" - i - 2 - 'GOL” i
Jep 0} asuodsal aAledaN| £0'689'T $|00'sT S| LOVL9T $ [(00°0sT) $ $| £0'SOL'T  $| 00°6TT S szoz/zt/s szoz/st/y uoN - soueldwod-uoN seoz/L/s SV VT
3
a3ep 0} asuodsal anneSan [ze /vy $ | oo'st $|Lezer - $ [(00°s2) - » $| - $ | Leve $ | 00'ese $ | szoz/iz/s SZ0Z/8T/v paseadaQ Aleyausg | Sz0z/S/S | unew av
EENZEND) g
ajep 0} asuodsal aanedaN | 0T LTT'Y $|00'sT $| otzot'y - $ |(00'0sT) - 00°0€ S| - $|otrzzs'y S |(oo'0og) $ scoz/e/L 1z02/2/6 ‘uonoauuodsig AMnN | szoz/t/L sy g€
1H T - 9oueldwod-uoN
z
Juay Jo JuawAeq
d p—— — . st R . _ _ § T Taay
ajep 0 asuodsai aAnesaN| ZT'8ET'S $|oost S| ereet's $ [(oo0sT) $ | ooog $|ZTv88'T  $| 00°6SE‘E $| szoz/si/s szoz/Le/9 uoN - oueydwon-uoN ST0Z/8T/8 | dAAVE
UOTI53UUGasIq AN 9
9jep 03 asuodsai aanesaN| 80°L6€EY $|oostT $ | so'zee'y - $ |(000sT) - - $| - $|80vSL'T $|008LLT $ | szoz/ti/e SZ0T/€T/T | 4HYZ ‘qudy jo JuswAhed | szoz/z/9 | oyod vy
UON - @dueljdwo)-uoN
S
2jep 03 asuodsai aAnedaN| 00°'T6 $|oo'stT $| 009z - $ |(000sT) < = $| - $|oos8z  $|(00°6S) $ | szoz/Liv szoz/1z/T Aje3union Ava og Sz0Z/L/T | selesviz
ysiy ooy v
a3e d 3 4 q 7 - g = - . . " |
3ep 0} dsuodsal aAnedaN| 00'658 $00'sT $ | 00'vv8 $ |(00'0sT) $ $ 100096 $ | oove $ | scoz/e/e S10Z/91/6 R §20z/t/6 | seles g€z
juay Jo JuswAed £
uodsal aAness "ThL ¥ '9ZL" - i - = - 874 2SS
9)ep 03 as 11edsN| 88'TvLY $ | oostT $ | 889zL'Y $ [(o00sT) $ $| 88¥ZET $|00CSSE S S20Z/T1/9 szoz/ot/s UoN - 2dueyjdwo)-uoN §202/5/9 sejes 40T
\ uoidauuodsig Aynn z
a3ep 03 asuodsal aAneSaN| 00 TE0T $|00'sT $ |Noo'9t10Z - $ [(00°0ST) 2 - §| & $ | 00'0v6 $ | oo'9zz't $| seoz/ve/o szoz/z/t IHYZ ‘3uay Jo Juawhed | 5Z0z/0T/9 | D 48SN T
UON - @duel|dwod-uoN
sadeweq jlun T
a1ep 03 asuodsal aAneSaN| 0Z'v6'0T $|oost $ | oz'6Z6°0T - $|(oo0sT) - - S| - $| oL LLe'oT $| 05 T0T $ szoz/ez/s SUoN ‘uonoauuodsia AN | SZoZ/€T/S | DI 8sSN €
1H Z - 9oueljdwod-uoN
s394 mo
14d + LNd/raV (pasoD) juaunsnipy nsodaq $904 $33avy) A0 PPV WD | e PIsSN0Ig aReq aNeq
Sinsumod SSAT (Pasor)) 5% 194 ueey /v JRLEUNZ | Ananddg 1an0)/e3 S19PI01I0M 24 9eY Bunwd)) W/(FudwIsINquIy mQ pasoD BLELIIN:S $T s | UOHBUILLIDL 10} HOSEY mQ oW #3u0
RueRg W/V Aumn)

§Z0Z '0€ 19qu3idas  1no GISOD
T dWIV Y04 SIONVIVE 440-3L1IM
ALIHOHLNV TYM3IN3Y¥ NVEdN ANV DNISNOH WVND

PAGE 3 of 48

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025



Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero
Govemor of Guam

Joshua F. Tenorio
Lt. Governor of Guam

John J. Rivera
Chairman

Nathanael P. Sanchez
Vice Chairman

Anisia S. Delia
Commissioner

Emilia F. Rice
Commissioner

Victor R. Torres
Commissioner

Karl E. Corpus
Resident Commissioner

Elizabeth F. Napoli
Executive Director

Fernando B. Esteves
Deputy Director

"GHURA"®

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority

Aturidat Ginima’ Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan
117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajana, GU 96910
Phone: (671) 477-9851 - Fax: (671) 300-7565 - TTY: (671) 472-3701
Website: www.ghura.org

October 6, 2025

Y%

TO: Frances Danieli, Controller
FROM: Gina M. Cura, Property Site Manager (Am
SUBJECT:  Recommend to Write-Off Tenant Accounts Receivables

Total: $1,155

I have reviewed AMP 2’s Tenant Accounts Receivables for the period through
September 30, 2025. Attached is a list of accounts to be written off due to non-
activity from former residents. The accounts were closed through September 30,
2025.

Please note that the ‘Aged Balance Report’ does not reflect the balances as indicated
in TAR. Attached is a TAR Balance Report (excel sheet) and supporting documents
explaining the variances as described below:

Write-Off Amount

Aged-Balance Report ariance

$5,049.43 $1,155.00 $3,894.43
The reason for the variance is due to other charges were applied to tenants after
September

30, 2025.

These inactive accounts are affecting the Authority’s financial performance and I am
recommending that these accounts be written off and forwarded to the Department
of Revenue and Taxation for collection.

Attachment

Board Meeting of Octebeniid

GHURA does not discriminate against persons with disabilities.
The Chief Planner has been designated as Section 504 Coordinator.

5cR@2Bhntacted at the above address and telephone numbers. PAGE 4 of 48



e|oIpus\ N ele|A :Ag pasedald

T40T

PAGE 5 of 48

00'SST'T  $ | 0009 00's60'T  $ |(00°009) $ [ oosze $ | 00°0LET S V1oL
i 00'7SS S [o0sT 00'6€S $ |(000ST) S| - $ | 00689 S szoT/elv vzoz/z/Tr SAVQ-0E AYVLINNTOA S20T/1/Y MNE %
0} asuodsal aAle3aN JINS €€
alep ) ) ) ) ) ) i 040407V.L
oy aSticHsen SARERaN 00'¥2¢ S [oo0sT 00'60C S [(00'0ST) $ |00°59 S |00v6C S 520¢/S/S Se0T/v/T SAVA-0€ AYYLINNTOA S207/1/S ‘Ad 1T €
a1ep 1N3NIIYOV VNI -
. 0016 $ |00'sT 009 $ |(00°0ST) $ |oo00T $ |00°9ZT S| szor/er/L ¥20z/tt/6 35v3130 NOLLYIOIA seoz/en/L | . . 14
-3ONVITdINOD-NON
alep 1IN3IW3I3FYOV VNI
S —— 0098C $ |00'ST 00'TLT $ [(00"0ST) $ [ 00091 $ [00'T9C S ScoT/vT/S S20T/€/9 m.m<£ 40 NOILV10IA S20T/T1/S ‘q1v § 621 1
*3ONVITdINOD-NON
ssay (o-q+e) (e
¥202/0€/60 (2) (q)sa8ieyd |) In0 A0 JaYY U | 33eQ PasSaI0.d a1eq
2 lln .r..w_un_cw Mvmmn\u/_\uv 5834 140 jo se (paso|)) puswAeqd/yusodag Ayundag Suiues|) 9y/(1uswasinquiay 1NQ paso|d JuawAed iseq HOREUIISL JoguosEy, 1932030 SN e
1eg aoue|eg ¥V Annn)

SZ0TZ ‘0€ ¥38N3Ld3S 40 SV LNO a3aso1d
¢ dAIV 404 SIDNVIVE 440-3LIIM
ALIHOHLNY TVMINIY NVEdN ANV ONISNOH INVND

Board Meeting of OctolM21, 2025



IR GHURA

— £ O
e E Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
2 g Aturidat Ginima’ Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan
‘t«& c" 117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajana, GU 96910
Qg 9.\" Phone: (671) 477-9851 - Fax: (671) 300-7565 - TTY: (671) 472-3701 EQUAL HOUSING
Sro62* Website: www.ghura.org OFFORTUHNITY
Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero October 06, 2025 a
Govemor of Guam 4’, @
Joshua F. Tenorio TO: Frances Danieli
Lt. Governor of Guam Controller
John J. Rivera
Chairman FROM: Bernadette V. Tyquiengco
Nathanacl P. Sanchez AMP3 Property Site Manager, Acting
Vice Chairman
) Subject: Recommend to Write-Off Tenant Accounts Receivables
Anisia S. Delia
Commissioner as of September 30, 2025.

Emilia F. Rice
Commissioner . 5 . v .
I have reviewed AMP3’s Tenant Accounts Receivable and attached is a list of

Vic“’cr R. Torres accounts recommended for write-off due to non-responsiveness from former
ommissioner . .
residents. These accounts, which have been closed through September 30, 2025,

Karl E. Corpus total $5,591.15.
Resident Commissioner
Elizabeth F. Napoli | These inactive account balances negatively impact GHURA's financial

Executive Director | performance. Therefore, I recommend that these balances be written off and
Forsndo B, Estoves forwarded to the Department of Revenue and Taxation for potential garnishment

Deputy Director | from any associated tax refunds.

Respectfully,

Be . Tyquiengco
AMP perty Site Manager, Acting

GHURA does not discriminate against persons with disabilities.
. e Chjef Plapner has been designated as Section 504 Coordinator.
Board Meeting of o?ﬂglgh intiy !% ted at the above address and telephone numbers. PAGE 6 of 48



PAGE 7 of 48

10N
N
o
N
ST'T6S'S $ =1V1OL -
ONIAN3d 3D1LON SAVA 0€
- 1IVIN G3141L43D VIA IN3S | EV'vOL‘E $|oost s [(000ST) $ EV'vS S 00's8L’e $ | scoc/v/8 | stoz/0T/9 1N3Yd 40 LNJWAVA-NON ST0T/vT/L 00r9ee €
JONVIVE ONIANVLSLNO LNVITdINOD-NON
3DILON SAvVA 0¢ $]
3SNOdS3d ON I X . . [ O
‘QINIFIIY QIHILYTD VA TLYLTT $|oost s [(000ST) $ €6'€CC S 8L°'S8T‘'T § | ST0e/T/L | Scoz/vi/e SNOILV1OIA 3SV31 seoez/ge/s OVIN96 4
LNVITdINOD-NON B
3SNOdS3d ON . . . . . 3DILON SAVA 0€
‘QIN33Y Q33 v | T $|oost s [(000ST) $ 1002, $ 00'LC s | seoe/z/L | seoz/s/s LNVITdNO3-NON Se0e/6¢/s OVING8 1 mu
SININNOD INNOJJV §334 14a | usodaqg | s9o4 sadiey)d SyIgyo | s3ad no-anow Q3553204d ANIWAVd NOILVNINNYIL 31va O-N # 1INN ‘ONY
NO Tva ¥/V Andas | 3noy w:_:mw_u Naom 31v1 | Joye aduejeg 1no 1Sv140 3Lva 404 NOSV3IY
uay Jo (yn) | -3S0V 3iLva
‘leSa ey

(s202) - 4v3IA VISl EdIN

G702/0€/60 01 5202/10/L0 wo.d d1eq 1oday

Sunnunodoy
140oday InO-aN0N

"HLNV IVMINTY NVEdN 8 ONISNOH INVND

Boa:a



(4]
— g %
% »
" J
o.!m‘*f

Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero
Govermnor of Guam

Joshua F. Tenorio
Lt. Governor of Guam

John J. Rivera

Chairman

Nathanael P. Sanchez
Vice Chairman

Anisia S. Delia
Commissioner

Emilia F. Rice
Commissioner

Victor R. Torres
Commissioner

Karl E. Corpus

Resident Commissioner

Elizabeth F. Napoli
Executive Director

Fernando B. Esteves
Deputy Director

GHURA

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority

Aturidat Ginima’ Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan
117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajana, GU 96910
Phone: (671) 477-9851 - Fax: (671) 300-7565 - TTY: (671)472-3701

Website: www.ghura.org

October 6, 2025

TO: Frances Danieli, Controller k
FROM: Property Site Manager, AMP4
SUBJECT:

Quarter Ending: September 30, 2025

Recommend Writing Off Tenant Accounts Receivable

Total: $64,502.69

| have reviewed AMP4’s Tenant Accounts Receivable for the period through
September 30, 2025. | request a total of $64,502.69 to be written off from the GL

books.

Attached is the account to be written off due to inactivity from the former resident.
Please note that these former tenants have not remitted any payments due within
the periods stated in their collection letters. DRT has been collecting a $15 fee for

each account. This fee has been applied to each of these accounts.

These inactive accounts affect the Authority’s financial performance, and |
recommend that these accounts be written off and forwarded to the Department of

Revenue and Taxation for collection.

Please feel free to contact me at (671) 475-1394 for any questions or concerns.

PHILOMENA SAN NICOLAS

Attachment

Board Meeting of ongaﬂagsacted at the above address and telephone numbers.

GHURA does not discriminate against persons with disabilities.
The Chief Planner has been designated as Section 504 Coordinator.

PAGE 8 of 48



69'20S'v9 $

93| svort't  § [0ST- ST 0 SY'18CT 0 se0z/z/L  |seoz/t/s NOILDINNODSIA ALIILN[SZ0Z/6/S 3INAVST -
dN-MOT104 01 3SNOdS3Y¥ ON

¥auan| ooszz S |ost- 5 0 STT ShL S20Z/1/L  |€z0Z/S/1T INVYD0Y¥d|€202/1T/2T INVAVET €
dN-MOT104 01 3SNOdS3Y¥ ON Y3IHLONV ¥3ANN Q31d3DDV

"¥3L131] 22908t S [0ST- ST 0 77656 786 S20z/t/L  |veoz/eT/8 ANV1SI-430 ONILYD013¥|+202/6/0T 0Vd90€ -
dN-MOT104 OL 3ISNOJS3Y ON

W3LI| €298 ¢ |osT- [ 0 €.'700T 0 Sz0z/81/9 |SzoT/T/9 3D1LON|SZ02/0¢€/Y NVag6T -
dN-MOTI04 OL 3ISNOdS3Y ON AVQ-0€ ‘3ONVITdINODI-NON

¥3La| see6r’y S [0ST- ST 0 G8'8ST9 1781~ szoz/t/L  |veoz/te/E NOILDINNODSIA ALIILN|¥Z0Z/LT/0T NVag6 of
dN-MOT104 0L 3SNOdS3¥ ON

"¥31131]| 062€ST S |0ST- ST 0 6'7€0T €€9 SzoT/t/L  |vzoT/t/9 1INN 40 LIN3INNOANVEY [¥202/6T/2T Inagt g
dN-MOT104 OL 3SNOdS3¥ ON

W3LI| cvzee S [osT- ST 0 Lt'00T LS9 S202/vT/v  |S20z/0€/T SNOILY10IA 3SV31|5202/€/¥ VSSP8 s
dN-MOT104 OL ISNOJS3Y ON

"¥31131] 9€°1£0°S  $ [0ST- [53 0 9€°L0T 6605 szoz/er/e  |vzoz/ez/ot LN3Y 40 INIAVJ-NON |+202/92/ZT anavt B
dN-MOT1104 OL 3SNOJS3Y¥ ON

"431131| 80'zzs0z ¢ [osT- ST 0 80'CTL0C  |0S- Sz0z/t/L |€zoT/LT/6 ONI¥V3H|€202/9T/0T vVagey 4
dN-MO1104 OL 3SNOdS3Y¥ ON 3DNVAIIYD - NOILYNIAYIL

¥3L131| 88'6€9 ¢ |0ST- ST 0 88'v0€ 0Ly s20z/z/L  |seoz/Le/T N3AID[szoz/61/S INAvoT &
dN-MO1104 OL 3SNOdS3Y¥ ON 3D1LON AYVINNTOA AVA-0€

¥3L| 6T ev0’s S [0ST- ST 0 61°SY6 €E€TY szoz/t/L  |€20T/1/Y 1INN 40 INIWNOANVaV |+z0z/61/6 ovdare "
dN-MOT104 OL 3ISNOJS3Y¥ ON

"¥3L131| 60°ZST’sT § [0ST- ST 0 60'95¢T TETVT SzoT/t/L  |vToT/T/y IN3Y 40 INIWAVJ-NON|+z0z/v/TT WVAVET "
dN-MOT104 01 ISNOJS3Y¥ ON

43L31| oooez S [0ST- ST 06T GET Sz0z/Tt/e  |veoz/6/1T SNOILYTOIA 3SV31|¥20Z/92/2T VaVTT ”
dN-MOT104 OL 3ISNOJS3¥ ON

‘¥3L131| £v'189°9 S |0ST- ST 0 T9'6LTT 98'9€95 Szoz/t/L |veoz/e/t NOILDINNODSIA ALMILN|¥20Z/92/v INVQAVST :
dN-MOT104 OL 3ISNOJS3Y¥ ON

S20Z d3S-A1NM - 440-3LIM 04
jno-anow
SINIWINOD zwzﬂwumﬂ M””_nuwm $334 180 mmmﬂw_m”ou nmw_ N._MW sayesueieg | OO | maiya | NOLLYNIAYILY¥O4 NOSV3Y | 31vaO-W | #uNn | ‘ON

U3y Jo (un)

ST0T ‘0€ ¥39N31d3S HONOYHL AOIY¥3d 40} 31eQ Joday
"HLNV TYM3INIY Nvadn 8 ONISNOH INVND

PAGE 9 of 48

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025



00°59¢

00°00¢€

00°ST

(00°0S)
19

UNOWY 40 AWM E

18'EV6'69
98'£T9'9€
0L'0€S°LE

00°S8C
(00°000°€)
¥ dIANV

1soda@ AYUndaS W S994 IYA MW SIIPIO JIOM S99 211 W

S9'80¥'8€
€8'677'9C
L9'TSLTT

ST'LE9'T
00°0LZ
(0000£2)
€ dINV

19 B SdINV
30 9HIM SC0C 41e3A |B3SlS

s9duey)d Sulues D m

86'L88'L
86'C6C'8
00'STC'T

00°08T
(00°008'1)
T dNY

2ouejeg uay m

62°0€8'€S
00'TT0CT
6°6L6'Cl
00°0€
00°09€
00°58¢
(00°522T)
T dAV

unowy Jo M |
douejeg Juay W
sadiey) Suiues D m
s994 3L W

SJI9PJO YIOM
S994 1yam
usodaq Ajundas m

(00°000°0T)

00°000°0T
00°000°0
00'000°0€

00°000°0%

siejjog sn uj

00°000°0S
00°000°09
00°000°0L

00'000°08

PAGE 10 of 48

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025



Page 1 of 43

GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

2025 LOW INCOME
HOUSING TAX CREDIT
QUALIFIED ALLOCATION
PLAN

GHURA BOC Approved
(Enter Date of Approval Prior To Issuance)

GHURA developed this Qualified Allocation Plan (QAP) which sets forth (1) the criteria to evaluate and allocate
tax credits to projects which best meet the housing needs of Guam, and (2) the procedure to monitor for
compliance with the provisions of the Low-Income Housing Tax Credit Program.

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 2 0of 43

Contents
L INtroduction......ccovimnssmss—————— 5
A. Low INCOME HOUSING TAX CIEAIL ..uverreerresseesseesseesserssesssessseeessesssessssessessssesssesssesssesssessssssssssssessssssssesssesssesssessssssssesssessans 5
B. PUIPOSE QNA SCOPE ..orrvueurrerreerersesseesseeseessesssesssessessesssessesssesseessesssessssssessasssessesssesssessesssesssssessasssesusessssasessasssesssssssssnssasans 5
C. Abbreviated QAP APPLICAtiON PrOCESS ...cuuurerueersersersreesseesseessseessessseesssesssesssesssesssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssessssssssssssessssssssssaees 5
D. The PUDLIC INPUEL PIOCESS eueereeuerseesreeseesrerssesseessessesssessesssssssessesssessssssessasssesssssssssssssasssesssssssssasssesssessssssessasssssssssessssssasans 6
E. HOUSING NEEAS ASSESSINENE ....euveeresrereesrersesseessessesssesseesseeseessesssessssssessesssesssessssssessesssesssssssssssssesssesssssssssesssesssssssssssssesans 6
I Allocation of Credits......c.ummnmmismsmsmsssmsssmsmsssssssssssssssns 7
B 072N S 51 1= =1 ) (TP 7
B. Threshold REQUITEIMENLES ......ccieriueeeieeeeseesesseeaseeseesse s sessss s bbb ssss bbbt bbb sanb s 8
11 Selection Criteria.....s————. 11
Criteria 1. (0-20 Points) Project Location and PrOXIMILY .......c.ocereueesseesseerersesserseeseessesssessessessssssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssesssessesas 12
Criteria 2. (0-18 Points) Project Financial Feasibility/VIability .........eesmemsrsmesssenmessmemssnssssssssmsssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssses 13
Criteria 3. (0-12 Points) Project ChAraCteTiStiCS ... eureeesrerrerseesreeseessesssesseesssssesssessssssessssssssssessssssesssssssssssssssssssesssessssssessnes 14
Criteria 4. (0-15 Points) The Populations Served by the ProJEC ... sssssssssssssssssssssssssnes 15
Criteria 5. (0-12 Points) Developer/Owner, and Management Team Experience and Capacity.........oeereeseeeseeseereenserseens 17

Criteria 6. (0-5 Points) The Community Support and Involvement for the Project and its Impact on the Neighborhood 19

Criteria 7. (2-8 Points) The Affordability of the Rents and the Length of the Affordability Period.........coceeseermeeserssesseennes 20
Criteria 8. (0-6 Points) Increase in the Extended Use Period / Conversion to Homeownership ..........oceeeeeereesrerseesseennes 21
Criteria 9. (0-2 Points) Local/Federal GOVEIrNMEnt SUPPOTt.....ceuerureeseeeeeeseemsensseeseessesssessseesseesssssssesssessssesssesssesssesssesens 22
Criteria 10. (0-1 Points) Qualified Non-Profit OrganiZation..........ceeeeeesreeeesseeseeeseessesseesseseessesssessssssessssssssssssessssssessesesas 23
Criteria 11. (0-2 Points) QUalified CENSUS TIACt ... ruuueersrersrersrersseneseesssessseessessssesssesssesssesssessssssssesssessssssssesssesssesssessssssssesssessans 24
Criteria 12. (0-1 Points) Public HOUSING WaItiNg LISES ...cuuveureeeemrerseesseeseesseseessesssessenssesseesssssssssesssessssssssssssssssssssssssssasssessesas 25
Criteria 13. (0-1 Points) Project will Receive Project-Based Rental ASSISTANCE ....c.veerrresremesssemessenseessessssssesssessessssssesnens 26
Criteria 14. (0-1 Points) Historic Nature of the PrOJECE......uuuu e eeereeesreeseeseessessesssenssenssensssesmseessssssessesssssssesssessssesssesssessans 27
Criteria 15. (0-7 POINtS) DEVEIOPET FEO...uurirrrerrerreererreeresssese s s ssess e sssssessss st st sssssessssssssess 28
IV. Rights of GHURA ......cccoiimsnmnmsnsssssnsmsmsssssssssssssssssssssssns 29
\'/ Fees s ————————— 30
VL Compliance Monitoring Plan.........cuusiesmsmsnsens 31
SUMIMATY oveutrirestresree sttt sttt 31
000) 1012 (ol PP 31
QUALIYING HOUSEROIAS ...cuueeueereeuereesseeecssersessesseeseesses s s s s s s s 33
e (L R 0y (o010 ) PP 35
(0010 0] ) N 35

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 3 0of 43

AIUAIES ©eveeeeeeeseeureseesseeseesseesses s e ee s e es s s s s bR AR £ R AR R AR SRR AR R AR AR R R 35
Rural Housing Service (RHS) and Tax-exempt Bond ISSUE PIrOJECES ...ceuureuseerseereesreesseeeseeeseemseesseessessesssessseessessssessssessessans 36
RepOIting REQUITEIMENES ...cuueueeseesersiesersesssessesessessessessessessesss s sss s s s s bbb 36
B S et ree ettt AR R R R AR SRR AR AR 36
NON-COMPHANCE PENAILIES ..vevrevereescesreeseesrerseseesseesessseseesseesses s s essessse s b s e e s bRt s 37
EXtENACA USE PEITOM . .vuueuurereererssesssesseessssssssesssssessssssssssssssssessssssssssssssssesssssssssssssssssasssssssssssssssssssassssssssssssssnsassssssssssssssnssanses 37
BAPPEAL et eeereeeeeseeueet et es et et es e R AR SRR AR SRR AR SRR AR SRR AR e E AR R r s 38
OTNET .ttt eaesseesseeseesse s st b s R RS R R AR R AR R e 38
W20 01 1 Lo 10 39
Income AVeraging GUIAEIINES. ... e reeeseesseeseesee s sees s ssesss s esss s ssess s sess s ssssssssssss e saens 39
W20 011 Lo 1. 40
IMATKET STUAY wuvvrerircerirsrssssssssssssesssssessssssssssss st st s s ssssssesssssssssssssssssessss s st ss s s s ssssssssssssssssssessssssenens 40
APPENAIX 3 ———————————— 41
Administrative Procedure for LIHTC Program Appeal REVIEW ........eneneeenneenseesessnsesssesssesseseseeens 41

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 4 of 43

This place is left intentionally blank.

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 5 0f 43

|.  Introduction

A. Low Income Housing Tax Credit
The Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) Program, created by the Tax Reform Act of 1986, is intended to
encourage the Construction or rehabilitation of low-income rental units. The LIHTC program provides tax
incentives to developers who build or rehabilitate affordable rental housing for low-income households. The
LIHTC program is administered by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) and state housing finance agencies
(HFAs). GHURA has been designated the HFA responsible for administering the LIHTC program.

The LIHTC program is authorized under Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code. The QAP is authorized under
Section 42(m)(1)(A) of the Internal Revenue Code. This Section requires each state to develop a QAP that is
consistent with the LIHTC program’s overall goals and objectives.

B. Purpose and Scope
The purpose of this QAP is to establish the policies and procedures for the allocation of Low-Income Housing
Tax Credits (LIHTCs) in Guam. The QAP provides guidance to developers, investors, and other stakeholders on the
criteria and priorities that the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority (the "Agency") will use to award
LIHTCs to eligible affordable housing projects.

This QAP is intended to support GHURA’s mission of promoting the development of safe, decent, and
affordable housing for low-income households in Guam. Through the LIHTC program, the Agency seeks to
incentivize the private sector to invest in the development and preservation of affordable rental housing that
serves the needs of low-income households.

The QAP establishes the eligibility requirements, scoring criteria, and other policies and procedures that the
Agency will use to allocate LIHTCs to eligible projects. The QAP also describes the public input process, the
Application process, and the compliance and monitoring procedures that the Agency will use to ensure that
LIHTC projects meet the program's requirements.

The QAP is based on the Agency's analysis of the state's housing needs, market conditions, and other relevant
factors. The QAP reflects the Agency's priorities for this year and is subject to change based on changes in housing
needs, LIHTC demand, and other factors.

The QAP is not intended to establish binding rules or regulations, but rather to provide guidance to developers,
investors, and other stakeholders on the Agency's LIHTC allocation process. The Agency may make exceptions or
modifications to the QAP on a case-by-case basis if it determines that such exceptions or modifications are
necessary to further the program's goals and objectives.

C. Abbreviated QAP Application Process

While it has been the normal practice for GHURA to conduct QAP Application processes to incorporate two
allocation cycles, GHURA has determined that there is a compelling need to conduct an abbreviated QAP
Application Process in 2025 in light of the non-award of CY2024 credits. Credits are available to allocate over
two years. The two-year timeline for CY2024 credits to be allocated is December 31, 2025. The QAP timetable
in Section II A. reflects this abbreviated QAP Application Process timeline. The Public Input Process discussed
in the following Item D is thus of particular importance to the 2025 QAP Application Process as we intend to
execute as robust an application process as is practicable.

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 6 0of 43

D. The Public Input Process
The public input process for LIHTC typically involves several steps. First, GHURA will hold a public meeting or
hearing to gather input from interested parties, including developers, community Organizations, and
residents. These meetings provide an opportunity for stakeholders to share their perspectives on the states
affordable housing needs, and to offer suggestions for how LIHTC can be used to address those needs.

Once GHURA has received input from stakeholders, it will develop the QAP based on Guam'’s priorities and
criteria for awarding tax credits to developers. The QAP is then made available to the public for comment which
is hosted by the agency. After the public comment hearing, GHURA will consider the feedback, finalize the QAP
and open it up for developers to submit an application.

E. Housing Needs Assessment
Guam’s current rental market is strong due to the driven presence of military personnel and the rising costs
for residential Construction. Individuals and families are finding rental units are for more desirable than
mortgages due to the high cost of living. Despite the numerous LIHTC projects throughout island, publichousing,
and housing assistance programs, there is still a high demand for affordable housing. In addition, populations
such as the disabled, elderly, veterans, and the homeless are finding a scarcity in affordable housing to meet
their special needs.

In order to alleviate the pressures or demand, Guam through this QAP should consider the following:

e Studio, 1-bedoom, or 2-Bedroom units for individuals/smaller families
*  3-or 4-Bedroom units for larger families

e  Veteran Housing

= Elderly Housing units

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 7 of 43

II.  Allocation of Credits

This QAP sets forth (1) the criteria to evaluate and allocate tax credits to projects which best meet the housing needs
of Guam, and (2) the procedure to monitor for compliance with the provisions of the LIHTC Program.

This allocation plan shall be effective for LIHTC reservations and awards of calendar year 2024 and 2025 funds
allocated to Guam by the IRS. The QAP is subject to amendment by the GHURA Board of Commissioners.

The QAP will utilize a point system to rank projects based upon the Evaluation criteria established. The ranking of
projects, along with all other relevant data, will determine the priorities to be followed by GHURA in allocating tax
credits to the projects under consideration. The scores derived from the point system will be a component of the
overall evaluation, and not the sole determining factor for the awarding of tax credits. In addition to the scores
derived, GHURA will review all relevant data required in the application. GHURA retains the option to approve or
reject applications based on GHURA’s assessment of Guam’s housing needs during the period covered by the QAP.
Projects selected under this QAP shall be evaluated as to the minimum amount of tax credits required in order to
make the project feasible.

The 2025 Guam QAP will focus on housing for smaller families, de-concentration of poverty and prevention of disparate
impact to the neighborhood and surrounding community.

GHURA provides greater emphasis on larger projects wherein 80% of the project will consists of 0-to-2-
bedroom units. There will be no cap as to how many units for the development, however, projects will be
encouraged to maximize the number of units developed using the maximum number of credits possible.

Guam's 2025 tax credit allocation available for allocation is $6,815,000, comprised of $3,360,000 (issued under Rev.
Procedure 2023-34 for CY2024 allocation) and $3,455,000 (issued under Rev. Procedure 2024-40 for CY2025 allocation).

The Board of Directors has approved the issuance of an allocation reservation of 2025 tax credits in an amount
not to exceed $1,793,120 to Flores Rosa Gardens LLC for the Flores Rosa Gardens development. This action reflects
the Board’s commitment to supporting the project and ensuring the allocated credits are reserved specifically for
this development in accordance with applicable program requirements and guidelines. A total of $5,021,880 in
credits is available for award net of this reservation.

Applicants seeking housing credit allocations in excess of the total credit allocation available for award must demonstrate
the financial capability to show that the project can be scaled to fit the available 2025 funding. Due to the abbreviated
timeline, forward commitments of future allocations will not be entertained, except in the event of a tie, as decided
and determined by the GHURA BoC at time of award(s). GHURA supports and encourages applicants to consider
the merits of mixed financing in pursuit of sustainable affordable development.

A. QAP Timetable

The QAP timeline is as follows:

e October 01, 2025 to October 16, 2025 - Public Comment Period

*  October 21, 2025 - Presentation to GHURA BOC for approval

e  October 21,2025 to November 26, 2025 - QAP/Application Open to the Public

*  November 26, 2025 - Application Closes/Final Submissions

»  November 28, 2025 to December 07, 2025 - Evaluation Panel Review/Final Scoring
*  December 09, 2025 - Final Recommendation to the GHURA BOC

*  December 11,2025 - Award Decision

*  December 31, 2025 - Final day Carryover Allocation Submission

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 8 0f 43

B. Threshold Requirements

There are several threshold requirements for housing developments receive tax credits both on the federal and state
level.

1. Federal Threshold Requirements

a) The project must be a residential rental property (either new Construction or rehab).

b) The property owner must commit to one of two possible low-income occupancy rules—the 20-50 rule,
which stipulates that at least 20 percent of the units must be occupied by households with incomes at or
below 50 percent of the area median income, or the 40-60 rule, which requires at least 40 percent of the
units mustbe occupied by households at or below 60 percent of the area median income.

¢) The affordable units have maximum rent levels (including utilities) set at 30 percent of gross household
income for households at the maximum income limit. For example, if a unit is restricted to households
earning 60 percent of AMI,ahousehold with a gross income of 50 percent of AMI would have to spend more
than 30 percent of their income on rent. Some households fill that gap with other housing assistance, such
as housing vouchers.

d) Tax credits are allocated only for the Construction costs of the affordable units—so-called “qualified
Construction costs”"—though the project could have a mix of affordable and market- rate units and could
include commercial and/or community space.

e) Property owners must operate under the income and rent restrictions for at least 30 years.

2. GHURA’s Threshold Requirements
a) SetAsides - Applicants will determine which set aside they will utilize for the project.

i. 9% Credits Set Aside: Applicants are advised that the agency will administer 9% LIHTC credits
only to be used for the following:

a. Construction of a New Building. The term “New Building”, as defined by Section 42 of the
IRC, is “a building the original use of which begins with the taxpayer.” Rehabilitation of
existing inventory but excluding Acquisition costs of real estate, buildings, and depreciable
assets from eligible basis (no Acquisition LIHTC).

b. Substantial Rehabilitation projects that do not have other federal funds. Federal funds include
loans and bonds with below market- rate interest. Rehabilitation is “substantial” if a
minimum amount is spent on each rent-restricted lower-income unit or 10% is spent on the
“eligible basis” (Eligible Basis = Total Development Costs - Land Acquisition) during a 24-
month period, whichever is greater.

ii. Income Averaging Set Aside
The Consolidated Appropriations of 2018 established a new income averaging set aside for LIHTC
developments. (Please refer to Appendix 1 for income average guidelines.)

b) Market Study: A comprehensive Market Study of the housing needs of low-income individuals in the area to
be served by the project by a disinterested third party must be submitted as part of this application. The
Market Study shall be completed at the Owner’s expense. Any applicant failing to submita Market Study or
submits a Market Study with a date older than 6 months before the date of Application submission will not be
considered for an award of tax credits. (Market Study requirements are specified in Appendix 2.)

¢) Site Control:

i.  Toreceive consideration for an allocation of tax credits, the applicant must have control of the site
in a form acceptable to GHURA. Evidence of site control must be submitted with the Application.
ii.  Toreceive consideration for a reservation of tax credits, the applicant must have site control in a
form acceptable to GHURA prior to GHURA entering into an allocation with the applicant. All lease
terms must extend a minimum of five (5) years past the minimum affordability period.
2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 9 of 43

iii. Atthe time of application, site control shall be substantiated by providing evidence in the form of a
fee simple deed executed land lease, or any other documentation acceptable to GHURA. For
reservation, documentation acceptable to GHURA may include an executed lease or sale option
agreement, or any other documentation acceptable to GHURA. All lease terms must extend a
minimum of five (5) years past the minimum affordability period.

d) Capital Needs Assessment: (For projects acquiring an existing property. All Units need to be reviewed.) To
ensure that the proposed rehabilitation of the project is adequate and that the property will have a useful life
that exceeds the compliance and additional use period (collectively the Extended Use Period). A capital needs
assessment of the property by a competent third party shall be submitted with the application. A capital needs
assessment is a qualified professional’s opinion of a property’s current physical condition. It identifies
deferred maintenance, physical needs and deficiencies, and material building code violations that affect the
property’s use, structural and mechanical integrity, and future physical and financial needs. The Capital Needs
Assessment shall identify any work that must be completed immediately to address health and safety issues,
violation of Federal or local law, violation of local code, or any work necessary to ensure that the building can
continue to operate as affordable housing.

e) Public Housing Waitlist/Homeless Services Programs: Applicant shall certify that all low- income units will
be made available to people on the waiting list for public housing, and/or acceptable homeless service
programs. The following shall be submitted with the application:

i. Copy of the letter submitted to the local public housing authority which administers the public
housing waiting lists that units will be available.

ii. Copy of the letter submitted to the Guam Homeless Coalition that provides services and programs to
participating homeless services providers that units will be available.

f)  Smoke Free: All projects will be smoke free. Owners must prohibit smoking in all indoor common areas,
individual living areas (including balconies and car ports), and within 20 feet of building entries or ventilation
intakes. A non-smoking clause must be included in the lease for each household.

g) Phase I Environmental Assessment
Required for all applications. For Acquisition/rehabilitation projects, the Phase I Environmental
Assessment should address lead-based paint and asbestos.

h)  Proof of Non-Profit Status
If applying under the Federal non-profit set aside, submit the following:
i.  Articles of Incorporation
ii. Copyofacurrent501(c)(3) IRS Tax Exemption Letter

i) Minimum Affordability Period
i.  Applicants requesting an award of 9% LIHTC must commit to a minimum affordability period of 45 years.
ii. Acquisition /Rehabilitation of an Existing Building used for housing applicants: affordability period must
also exceed any pre-existing affordability period by no less than 30 years.

j)  Disqualification: GHURA may disqualify an application based on substantive evidence connecting a principal to
not being in good standing with any affordable rental housing program administered by the allocating agency.

k) Good Standing Policy: GHURA, in its sole discretion, through its agents, may make the determination thata
program applicant, including, but not limited to the principal, management agent, consultant, or affiliate is
not in good standing for one or more of the following reasons:

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 10 of 43

i. Having an outstanding and unresolved debt to GHURA;

iil. A documented record of unaddressed issues or concerns regarding property management;

ili. Program noncompliance or malfeasance with any affordable housing program administered by the
GHURA;

iv. Program noncompliance or malfeasance with any Federal grant administered by the GHURA;

v. Inclusion in the Federal Debarment list by any principal, management agent, consultant, or affiliate at
the time of Application; or

vi. Other determinations made by the agency based on a pattern of mismanagement or noncompliance as
evidenced by monitoring reviews or other information.

Determinations may be appealed to the agency Board of Commissioners. Appeals shall be submitted to the
Executive Director within 7 calendar days of the notification of the adverse determination

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



[ll.  Selection Criteria
Each Application will be evaluated and awarded points in accordance with the following criteria. Unless otherwise
indicated, all references to low-income unit(s) or low-income rental unit(s) shall mean low- income housing tax
credit unit(s).

Page 11 of 43

Application must have a minimum score of 77 out of 111 points to be considered for award. Selection Criteria are as

follows:
CRITERIA POINTS
1 Project Location and Proximity 20
2 | Project Financial Feasibility/Viability 18
3 Project Characteristics 12
4 | Populations Served by the Project 15
5 | Developer, Owner, and Management Team Experience and Capacity 12
6 | The Community Support and Involvement for the Project and its Impact on 5
the Neighborhood
7 | The Affordability of the Rents and the Length of the Affordability Period 8
8 | Increase in the Extended Use Period / Conversion to Homeownership 6
9 | Local/Federal Government Support 2
10 | Qualified Non-Profit Organization 1
11 | Qualified Census Tract 2
12 | Public Housing Waiting Lists 1
13 | Project will Receive Project-Based Rental Assistance 1
14 | Historic Nature of the Project 1
15 | Developer Fee 7

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Criteria 1. (0-20 Points) Project Location and Proximity

Page 12 of 43

The location of the project and its proximity to amenities, services, transportation, and jobs will have an impact on
the quality of life and economic opportunities for low-income households. Please note this criterion consists of four
subcategories: (1) proximity to public transportation; (2) proximity to grocery stores; (3) proximity to health care
facilities; and (4) proximity to employment hubs. Each subcategory will be worth up to 5 points, depending on the
distance from the proposed location to the nearest amenity or service. Distance is measured by driving distance using
Google maps or a similar service. Please provide evidence through market study Points will be awarded as follows:

Subcategory Distance Points Available
Less than 5 miles 5 Points
) i 5-10miles 4 Points
Public Transportation
10 - 15 miles 3 Points
More than 15 miles 0 Points
Less than 5 miles 5 Points
i 5-10miles 4 Points
Grocery Store/Shopping
10 - 15 miles 3 Points
More than 15 miles 0 Points
Less than 5 miles 5 Points
o 5-10miles 4 Points
Health Care Facilities
10 - 15 miles 3 Points
More than 15 miles 0 Points
Less than 5 miles 5 Points
5-10miles 4 Points
Employment Hubs
10 - 15 miles 3 Points
More than 15 miles 0 Points

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 13 0of 43

Criteria 2. (0-18 Points) Project Financial Feasibility/Viability

The financial feasibility and viability of the project and its sources and uses of funds helps ensure that project is
economically sound, has sufficient funding resources, and can sustain its operations and affordability over time.
Applicants should consider including commitment letters, letters of interest or term sheets from experienced LIHTC
investors. This criterion is worth 18 points and will consists of three subcategories: (1) debt coverage ratio; (2) operating

expense ratio; and (3) sources and uses of funds. The points are awarded as follows:

indicates ability torepay debt

Subcategory Standard or Benchmark Points Available
The ratio of net operating 6 points foraratio 1.2
incometo debtservice . i
Debt Coverage Ratio payments. A higher ratio 4 points for a ratio between 1.15 and 1.19

2 points for a ratio between 1.10 and 1.14

0 points for a ratio below 1.10

Operating Expense ratio

The ratio of operating expenses to
effective gross income. A lower
ratio indicates greater efficiency
in managing costs.

6 points for a ratio 45%
4 points for a ratio between 46% and 50%
2 points for a ratio between 51% and 55%

0 points for aratio above 55%

Sources and uses of funds

The amount and type of funding
sources and how they are
allocated to different project
costs. A higher percentage of
equity indicates greater financial
strength and commitment.

6 points for percentage of equity above
80%

4 points for percentage of equity between 70% and

80%

2 points for percentage of equity between 60% and

70%

0 points for percentage of equity below 60%

2025 LIHTC QAP Final




Criteria 3. (0-12 Points) Project Characteristics

Page 14 of 43

The design and quality of the project are important in providing affordable housing that is attractive, functional,
durable and comfortable for the residents and the community. The efficiency, accessibility, and sustainability features
of a project are important for reducing the environmental impact of the housing, lowering the operating costs, and
enhancing the health and well-being of the residents. Projects are encouraged to incorporate as much features as

possible.
— Points
Subcategor Description
At . Available
Efficient floor plans that maximize usable space, adequate
storage space in each unit, optimal natural lighting and ventilation, and
Unit Layout/Space Efficiency | innovative design solutions to optimize small spaces. 2 points
80% of the project should consist of Studio/1bd/2bd units.
Barrier-free access to units and common areas, adherence to
accessibility guidelines for doorways, hallways, and bathroom, and
Universal Design and inclusion of adaptive design features for individuals with disabilities.
Accessibility 2 points
If development is a multi-family multi-story project, ground level units
should incorporate designs for individual with disabilities.
Design that complements the existing architectural style of the
Architectural Compatibility | neighborhood; use of materials and colors that blend well with the 2 points
and Neighborhood surroundings; and engagement with community stakeholders to
Integration incorporate their feedback.
Integration of energy-efficient building envelope and insulations,
specification of high-efficiency HVAC systems and lighting, Incorporation
Energy Efficiency and of renewable energy generation systems, and use of sustainable materials| 2 points
Sustainability Design and Construction practices.
Projects are encouraged to incorporate green building certifications i.e.
energy efficiency, LEED certifications and should provide evidence.

. Provision of common areas for social interaction and communication, .
Community Spaces and , i " ) s 2 points
Ameniti inclusion of amenities such as playgrounds, gardens, or fitness facilities.

menities
Durability and Maintenance | Selection of high-quality Construction materials and finishes and 2 points
implementation of durable and low maintenance building systems.

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 15 of 43

Criteria 4. (0-15 Points) The Populations Served by the Project

Successful LIHTC projects service populations of variety both to address the housing needs of the community and give
opportunities for special populations to live in affordable housing. Points will be awarded to populations with special
housing needs, homeless and at-risk populations, and certain preferences. Projects are encouraged to incorporate
one or more types of populations and provide evidence to what extent of services or amenities will be available to
each in the application.

Points

Subcat; Descripti
ubcategory escription Available

Physical Disabilities: preference may be given to projects that allocate a percentage
of units to individuals or households with physical disabilities, ensuring
accessibility features and accommodations.

Mental Health Conditions: projects that provide supportive housing or partner
with service providers to offer mental health services may receive additional
points.

Seniors: preference may be given to projects specifically designed for elderly
individuals or households with features that support aging in place, suchas grab
bars, accessible entrances, or proximity to senior centers.

Special The project will set-aside at least 20% of all units for tenant populations with .
Needs special housing needs. Persons with special housing needs may include the 5 Points
physically and mentally disabled. Units intended to serve the homeless must be
used as permanent supportive housing, as regulation forbids the use of LIHTC
projects as transient homeless shelters. To receive consideration for this
criterion:

A. The project must commit to provide case management or services specific
to this population or special facilities to accommodate the physically
disabled. (Please provide details of the services and/or special facilities i.e.
what ADA standards and designs will be incorporated in unit Construction
or facilities? How many units will meet ADA standards, if any?

B. The Market Study shall specifically address the housing needs for the special
needs group.

Homelessness: projects that reserve units for individuals or households
transitioning from homelessness may receive priority.

Homeless Foster Youth or Emancipated Youth: preference may be given to projects 5 Points
And At-Risk that allocate a portion of units specifically for foster youth aging out of the system
Populations or supportive services for these individuals.

Domestic Violence Survivors: projects that prioritize housing for survivors of
domestic violence and offer supportive services may receive additional points.

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 16 of 43

Preferences

Local Residents: preference may be given to individuals or families who
currently reside in the local community or have strong ties to the area, promoting
community stability and integration.

Veterans: projects that allocate units or collaborate with veteran support
Organizations to provide housing for military veterans may receive preference.

Displaced Individuals or Families: special consideration may be given to
households that have been displaced due to natural disasters, eminent domain,

or other emergencies, ensuring they have access to affordable housing.

Individuals with Children: The Project will serve tenant populations of individuals
with children and provide evidence through the service of programs for
children.

Developer’s policies must clearly articulate the way displacement impacts to
affected individuals and families will be executed to best address the needs of
individuals seeking housing at the time of displacement due to natural
disasters, eminent domain, or other emergencies.

5 Points

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Criteria 5. (0-12 Points) Developer/Owner, and Management Team Experience and Capacity.

Page 17 of 43

Description

Points
Available

Developer/Owner
Experience

Developer/Owner (or any member/staff of the development
team) has a record of successfully completing LIHTC projects.

Developer/Owner has an understanding of the LIHTC program,
Application process, and compliance requirements.

Developer/Owner has the financial stability and capacity i.e., the
ability to secure financing, managing costs, and handle any
unexpected expenses that may arise during the project.

6 points

Developer/Owner (or any member/staff of the development
team) has no record of LIHTC projects but has experience of building
affordable housing projects of similar design.

Developer/Owner has made efforts to research and understand the
LIHTC program, the Application process and compliance
requirements

Developer/Owner has the financial stability and capacity i.e,, the ability|
to secure financing, managing costs, and handle any unexpected
expenses that may arise during the project.

3 points

Developer who has a track record of chronic or substantive
non-compliance, returned allocations or failed projects.

Developer has no experience in LIHTC projects or the LIHTC program

0 points

Management Team

Management team has experience with LIHTC properties, a
track record of successfully meeting LIHTC compliance
requirements, understanding of income certifications and
handling the unique challenges that come with managing
affordable housing

Management team can assess the property for maintenance and
upkeep to maintain high-quality standards, addressing maintenance
issues promptly and can conduct regular inspections to ensure
property remains in good condition

Management team has the ability to provide supportive services
to low-income residents, can emphasize tenant satisfaction,
communication, and responsiveness.

6 points

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 18 0f 43

Management team has no experience in servicing LIHTC
properties but has experience in servicing projects of similar design.

Management team will be able assess the property for maintenance
and upkeep to maintain high-quality standards, addressing
maintenance issues promptly and can conduct regular inspections to

ins i iti 3 points
Management Team ensure property remains in good condition p

(continued from previous Management team will have the ability to provide supportive services
page) to low-income residents, can emphasize tenant satisfaction,
communication, and responsiveness.

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 19 of 43

Criteria 6. (0-5 Points) The Community Support and Involvement for the Project and its Impact on the

Neighborhood
LIHTC projects should take into consideration the following in regards to the community support and involvement:
Subcategory Description Points
Available
Community Engagement | Projectwillinclude local stakeholders and decision-making processes. 1 Point
Strategy
Partnerships with Local Project will partner with local Organizations that provide support 1 Point
Organizations services to residents
Community Development | Project developer/management team will support community
Initiatives development initiatives beyond the LIHTC property, such as support
for economic development or neighborhood revitalization projects. 1 Point
Community Outreach and | Project will make efforts to educate the community about the LIHTC
Education program and affordable housing options, including hosting 1 Point
informational sessions or participating in community events.
Project management team will consider mechanisms for collection
and incorporating tenant input and feedback. This could include
tenant meetings, surveys, suggestion boxes or other channels of
Tenant [nput . .
communication. The management team that actively seeks and values | 1 py;
and Feedback _ , , oint
tenant input demonstrates the commitment to resident
empowerment and community building for better LIHTC projects.

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 20 of 43

Criteria 7. (2-8 Points) The Affordability of the Rents and the Length of the Affordability Period

The affordability of rents are critical for the LIHTC developments. Factors such as the percentage of units set aside for
low-income tenants compared to the Area Median Gross Income (AMGI) helps ensure the commitment to maintain
affordable rents and to keep it within the LIHTC program guidelines.

Description Points
P Available
100% of the project to households earning 60% or less of AMGI 8 Points
Affordability of Rents 60% of the project to households earning 60% or less of AMGI, or 80% of | 4 Points

the project to households earning 50% of less of AMGI.

40% of the project to households earning 60% or less of AMGI, or 60% | 2 Points
of the project to households earning 50% or less of AMGI

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 21 of 43

Criteria 8. (0-6 Points) Increase in the Extended Use Period / Conversion to Homeownership

LIHTC developments have aminimum compliance period requirement of 15 years, but some developments may have
longer commitments. LIHTC developments may also have plans for units to be converted to homeownership for the
residents after the initial 15-year compliance period has expired.

Descripti Points
escription Available
15-year compliance period plus 46 years or more 6 Points
Length of Affordability 15-year compliance period plus 30 years extended use period 4 Points
Period
15-year compliance period plus 15 years extended use period 2 Points
15-year compliance period no extended use period 0 Points
OR
Conversion to The development will be converted to homeownership for the residents | 6 Points
Homeownership after the initial fifteen (15)-year compliance period has expired.

Applicants shall submit their plan for conversion to homeownership to be evaluated for feasibility and compliance
with all regulations (Section 42, Fair Housing, and all other funding requirements).

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 22 of 43

Criteria 9. (0-2 Points) Local/Federal Government Support

The project will receive a below market loan or grant from a federal agency or Government of Guam agency other than
GHURA which, in total amounts to 10% or more of the total development cost.

Description IS

. Available
The project has not applied for a below market loan or grant from a federal agency
or Government of Guam agency, or if the total amount applied for is less than 10% of total 0 Points

development costs.

The project has applied for a below market loan or grant from a federal agency or
Government of Guam agency. Documentation must provide evidence that an Application for 1Point
financing has been submitted.

The project has received a commitment from a federal agency or Government of
Guam agency. A copy of a commitment letter or contractual agreement must be included in 2 Points
the application.

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 23 0of 43

Criteria 10. (0-1 Points) Qualified Non-Profit Organization

The project will be owned by a qualified non-profit Organization as defined in Section 42(h)(5)(B), (C) of the Internal
Revenue Code.

Points

Descriptio
1puon Available

If the answer to the question is NO 0 Points

If the answer to the question is YES, the Organization must be a qualified non-profit
Organization at End of Application submission. Organization must exist in and be qualified to do
business in Guam. In addition, the following must be submitted:

Articles of Incorporation

2. Copyofacurrent501(c)(3) IRS Tax Exemption Letter for the Qualified Non-
Profit Organization

3. Mostrecent Treasury Form 990 with all supporting documentation, as filed
withthelRS

1 Point

The Qualified Non-Profit Organization is required to have a physical office in Guam.

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 24 of 43

Criteria 11. (0-2 Points) Qualified Census Tract

Project characteristics, including whether the project includes the use of existing housing as part of a community
revitalization plan

Project is located in a Qualified Census Tract. The project will redevelop existing housing, which contributes to a
concerted community revitalization plan as determined by GHURA.

Description Points
. Available

The project is located in a Qualified Census Tract. 1Point

The project will contribute to a community revitalization plan.

(Copy of the plan to be submitted with the completed Application for GHURA'’s review to claim the 1 Point

point.)

The project is neither located in a Qualified Census Tract nor contributing to a 0 Points

community revitalization plan.

To receive consideration for this criterion, applicant must provide an explanation on how this project is in compliance
with such plan and its benefit to the overall community. The applicant must provide a letter of interest or a binding
agreement with the government agency administering the community revitalization plan.

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 25 of 43

Criteria 12. (0-1 Points) Public Housing Waiting Lists

Project must market their developments to the local PHA waiting lists including Section 8 existing waiting lists. The application
must contain a letter to the PHA.

Points Available

If the answer to the question is NO 0 Points

If the answer to the question is YES 1Point

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 26 of 43

Criteria 13.(0-1 Points) Project will Receive Project-Based Rental Assistance

Project will be receiving project-based rental assistance subsidies which would result in eligible tenants paying
approximately 30% of their gross monthly income towards rent. Eligible programs shall include, but not be limited to, the
Rural Development 515 Loan Program and HUD Housing Choice Voucher/Section 8 Project-Based Rental Assistance

Program.
Points Available
If the answer to the question is NO 0 Points
If the answer to the question is YES 1 Point

If the whole project has a secured authorization for project-based subsidies then 1
point will be awarded.

Applicants are advised that GHURA, in its capacity as the local administering PHA, will not entertain requests for HUD
HCV/S8 PBRA Program vouchers for developments receiving an allocation or reservation of tax credits under the 2025
QAP.

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 27 of 43

Criteria 14. (0-1 Points) Historic Nature of the Project
The proposed project will preserve the historic nature of an existing building.

The proposed project involves the preservation of a building(s) on a national or state historic registry.

Points Available

If the answer to the question is NO 0 Points

If the answer to the question is YES 1Point

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Criteria 15. (0-7 Points) Developer Fee

Page 28 0of 43

The applicant elects to limit the total Developer Fee as a percentage of the total development cost (excluding developer
fee and reserves) as presented in the application. The Developer Fee includes total fees paid to the Developer,
including, but is not limited to, consulting fees, project management fees, developer overhead, and developer fees.
Architectural, Engineering, Accounting, and Legal fees are not included as the Developer Fee.

Applicants receive scores for this criterion based on the table below. Please note the different categories for New
Construction vs. Acquisition / Rehabilitation applications.

Acquisition / Rehabilitation
New Construction
Fee on Acquisition Fee on Rehabilitation

Fee Points | Fee Points | Fee Points
18% > Fee 2 16% 0 13%>Fee>11% 0 18% > Fee 2 16% 0
16% > Fee 2 14% 1 11% > Fee 2 9% 1 16% > Fee 2 14% 1
14% > Fee 2 12% 2 Fee <9% 3 14% > Fee 2 12% 2
12% > Fee 2 10% 3 Fee <9% 4
10% > Fee 2 8% 5

Fee<8% 7

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 29 of 43

IV.  Rights of GHURA

The awarding of tax credits rests solely with the GHURA Board of Commissioners. Further, GHURA retains its
discretionary authority to approve or disapprove any post-award modifications to the project.

GHURA reserves the right to disapprove any Applicationor project for any tax credit reservation or allocation,
regardless of ranking under the criteria and point system as contained in Sections III of this QAP. GHURA shall have the
authority to defer consideration of any Application if such deferral is deemed in the best interest of meeting housing
needs.

Tie
In the event of a tie in the scores, Applications will be ranked according to tax credits per unit favoring the
development that requires the fewest tax credits per unit.

GHURA reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to do the following:
(i) Hold back a portion of the annual federal housing credit ceiling for use during later reservation cycles,

(i) Carryover a portion of the current year's housing credit ceiling for allocation to a project which has notyet
been Placed in Service,and

(iii) Issue a reservation for the next year's housing credit ceiling.

GHURA is required under the IRC of 1986, as amended, to allocate the minimum amount of tax credits required to
make a project feasible. The determination of the amount of tax credits to be reserved or allocated to a project shall
be made solely at the discretion of GHURA. GHURA may, at the time of issuance of the IRS Form(s) 8609 for the project,
decrease the amount of tax credits allocated to a project based on the actual cost and financing of the project.

GHURA may, at its sole discretion , conduct a special round after the final scheduled round for a year for projects
(i) where the applicant’s tax counsel has attested to an itemization of how the ten percent test prescribed by Internal
Revenue Code Section 42(h)(1)(E) will be met; (i) which have no deficient Application items; and (iii) for which all
exhibits have been submitted ("Year-End Round"). Year-End Round projects will receive a Carryover Allocation, not a
reservation of LIHTCs, which may contain certain conditions and time periods for satisfying them. The circumstances
for conducting a Year-End Round are (1) availability of LIHTCs and (2) potential loss of LIHTC credits to the National Pool.
When a Year-End Round is being conducted, applicants need to satisfy the above requirements in order to receive a
Carryover Allocation; and LIHTCs will be processed on a first-come-first-served basis and allocated to the extent
available and to the extent applications can be processed.

GHURA in no way represents or warrants to any interested party which may include, but is not limited to, any
developer, project owner, investor or lender that the project is, in fact, feasible or viable.

No GHURA member, officer, agent or employee shall be personally liable concerning any matters arising out of, or in
relation to, the reservation or allocation of Low-Income Housing Tax Credits.

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 30 of 43

V.  Fees

The following fees are associated with the Low-Income Housing Tax Credit program. GHURA reserves the right to
adjust the fees due to changing circumstances annually each January 1. All fees shall be paid via Cashier’s Check and
made payable to Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority.

Application Fee

An Application Fee of $1,500 per application shall be payable at the time of submission of the application.
The fee shall be the same for all applicants.

Good Faith Deposit

A good faith deposit of ten percent (10%) of the first year’s federal tax credits reserved shall be payable at the time the
executed binding agreement is submitted to GHURA. Upon allocation and issuance of the IRS Form 8609, eighty
percent (80%) of the good faith deposit shall be retained by GHURA as an administrative fee. The remainder of the
good faith deposit may be refunded to the applicant in the sole discretion of GHURA. Failure to meet any of the elections
made in the scoring criteria, participation elements, or requests for additional credits at the time of application
or after may result in the retention of the entire good faith deposit by GHURA.

Compliance Monitoring Fee

Please refer to Section VI. Compliance Monitoring Plan for more details regarding the Compliance Monitoring Fee.
Qualified Contract Processing Fee

Qualified Contract Fee of $150 per unit for all units

Attorney’s Fees and Costs:

In the event of a dispute or litigation regarding a QAP Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to collect
reasonable Attorney’s fees, costs, and expenses.

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



VI.

Page 31 of 43

Compliance Monitoring Plan

Summary

GHURA shall monitor compliance with all applicable Federal Program requirements for the period a project is
committed to providing low-income rental units. GHURA will require that all qualified tenants of a project be
certified upon occupancy and be re-certified annually to ensure compliance. Projects shall be required to
maintain copies of the income certification for each tenant on forms approved by GHURA. Projects will also be
required to maintain records regarding number of rental units (including number of bedrooms and size of
square footage of each bedroom); percentage of total rental units that are low-income units; rent charged on each
rental unit including utility allowances; number of occupants in each low-income unit for those buildings receiving tax
credits prior to 1990; documentation regarding vacancies in the building; eligible and qualified basis of the building at
the end of the first year of the credit period, and at the end of each year until required set-asides are met; and
character and use of the nonresidential portion of the building that is included in the building's eligible basis, all
in accordance with the rules published by the Internal Revenue Service.

GHURA may perform an audit annually but at a minimum, once every three years, and shall have access to all books
and records upon notice to the project owner.

Annually, owners of low-income housing tax credit projects will be required to certify to GHURA that for the
previousyear,

» the minimum set-aside requirement was met;

= there was no change in the applicable fraction, or an explanation if there was a change; appropriate
income certifications and documentation have been received for each low- income tenant;

* eachlow-income unit was rent-restricted in accordance with the Code;

« allunits were for use by the general public and used on a no transient basis (except for transitional
housing for the homeless as provided for in the Code);

* each building was suitable for occupancy, taking into account local health, safety and building codes;

« there was no change in the eligible basis in the project, or an explanation if there was a change;

« alltenant facilities included in the eligible basis were provided on a comparable basis without
charge;

e rentals of vacancies were done in accordance with the Code;

= rentals of units were done in accordance with the Code if any tenant's income increased above the limit
allowed by the Code;

* aRestrictive Covenant document was in effect for the project, for those buildings receiving credits after 1989,
all in accordance with the rules published by the Internal Revenue Service.

I[f GHURA becomes aware of non-compliance, the Internal Revenue Service shall be notified in accordance with the
rules published by the Internal Revenue Service.

Please consult with your tax Attorney and/or LIHTC consultant regarding Internal Revenue Code regulations.
Owners are responsible for keeping abreast of current LIHTC Program requirements.

The guidelines outlined below in sections B through K pertain to projects allocated Low Income- Housing Tax
Credits in Guam.

Compliance
Owner/Manager Training

Owners, managing agents, and on-site managers should attend or document that they have recently
attended training on management and compliance prior to leasing any units, but no later than receipt of IRS Form

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 32 of 43

8609, which certifies an allocation of tax credits. Training may be required following significant or repeated
noncompliance events. At minimum, such training should cover key compliance terms, qualified basis
rules, determination of rents, tenant eligibility, file documentation, next available unit procedures
and unit vacancy rules, agency Reporting requirements, record retention requirements, and site visits.

Set Aside

The project must comply with the low-income set-aside requirements of Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code
as chosen by the owner at the time of receiving the credits. The minimum requirements are either:

1. 20 percent or more of the units are occupied by tenants having a household income of 50 percent or less
of the area median gross income (the "20-50 requirement"), or

2. 40 percent or more of the units in the project are occupied by tenants having a household income of 60
percent or less of the area median gross income (the "40-60 requirement").

3. Election of income averaging for new LIHTC developments where LIHTC Qualified Units (Units) may serve
households earning up to 80% of the Area Median Income (AMI) so long as the average income limit of the
Qualified Units is 60% or less of AMI. Designated income levels for Qualified Units may be set at 10% increments
between 20% and 80% of AMI. See Appendix 1 for further guidance.

Tenant income is calculated in a manner consistent with the determination of annual income under Section
8 of the United States Housing Act of 1937, as directed by the Internal Revenue Code. Area median incomes
are determined annually by the U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD) and are available
from GHURA.

Rent

Units in the project must be rent-restricted to thirty (30) percent of the imputed income limitations based
on unit size as provided in Code Section 42(g)(1). This rent restriction must be maintained throughout the
Term of the Compliance and Extended-use period. See ‘Rent Restrictions ' in this Section for further
information.

Term of Compliance

Projects receiving a LIHTC allocation after January 1, 1990, must comply with eligibility
requirements for the extended use period [initial 15-year period (compliance period), in addition to the 15 or
more years (extended use period)] determined by elections indicated in the Restrictive Covenant Document. The
Restrictive Covenant Document must be recorded before credits are allocated.

Annual Certification

These and other compliance requirements as listed in Section ‘A. Summary’ must be certified annually by the
owner through the submission of the Annual Report. The Annual Report includes the Owner's Certificate of
Continuing Program Compliance and shall be submitted by February 1 of each year throughout the
compliance/extended-use period.

Records Retention

The Annual Report and the supporting documentation verifying the information on the Annual Report must
be kept for a minimum of six (6) years after the due date (with extensions) for filing the federal income tax
return for that year. The records for the first year of the credit period,

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 33 0of 43

however, must be retained for at least 6 years beyond the due date (with extensions) for filing the federal income
tax return for the last year of the compliance period of the building, in accordance with published IRS
guidelines.

IRS Form 8609

Owner shall complete Part Il of IRS Form 8609 and submit with subsequent Annual Reports.

Qualified Basis Tracking Sheet (QBTS)

This form shall be submitted annually until the required set-asides are established. Documents will provide
information on original tenants qualifying each building for tax credits minimum set- asides, and other set-
asides.

Status Reports

This report is to be submitted annually by owners in such format as required by GHURA or its Authorized
Delegate to document and track the continuous compliance of tax credit units. The documents report data that
tenants are income eligible at move-in, that the occupants of LIHTC units are re-certified at least on an
annual basis and that the unit rents are restricted. Documentation will also indicate compliance with the
vacant unit rule and 140% rule. The tracking of tax credit units substantiates the maintenance, increase or
reduction of each BIN's qualified basis.

Qualifying Households

Applicants for low-income units should be advised early in their initial visit to the project that there are maximum
income limits which apply to these tax credit qualified units. Management should explain to the tenants that the
Anticipated income of all persons expecting to occupy the unit must be verified and included on a Tenant Income
Certification (TIC) prior to occupancy, and re-certified on an annual basis. Applicants should be informed of other
Internal Revenue Service requirements such as the Student Rule and Recertification.

Unborn Children

In accordance with the HUD Handbook 4350.3, owner shall include unborn children in determining
household size and applicable income limits. If permitted by state laws, owner shall require documentation
of pregnancy in such circumstances.

Student Households

In accordance with the Internal Revenue Code, a household comprised entirely of full-time students may
notbe counted as a qualified household, unless the household meets at least one exception. Refer to the Internal
Revenue Code for additional guidelines on the exceptions. Owner shall utilize alease provision requiring tenants
to notify managing agent of any change in student status.

Calculating Anticipated Tenant Income

Owner shall qualify tenants by calculating household income using the gross income the household
anticipates it will receive in the 12-month period following the effective date of the

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 34 of 43

income verification or Recertification. Anticipated income should be documented in the tenant file by third
party verification whenever possible, or by an acceptable alternate method of verification with
documentation as to why third-party verification was not available. Owner shall use current circumstances
to project income, unless verification forms or other verifiable documentation indicate that an imminent
change will occur. Owner shall refer to HUD Handbook 4350.3 for guidance on the proper calculation and
verification of income and assets per IRC regulations.

Certification

Upon acceptance of an applicant to the project, a TIC must be completed for the applicant and certified to by
the applicant and the owner. The form is a legal document which, when fully executed, qualifies the
applicants to live in the set-aside units in the project.

The TIC must be executed along with the lease prior to move-in. No one may live in a unitin the projectunless
certified and underlease.

The original copy of the executed TIC form is to be retained in the applicant's file. The TIC and the supporting
documentation verifying the TIC must be kept for a minimum of six (6) years after the due date (with extensions)
for filing the federal income tax return for that year. The records for the first year of the credit period, however,
must be retained for at least 6 years beyond the due date (with extensions) for filing the federal income tax return
for the last year of the compliance period of the building, in accordance with published IRS guidelines.

Recertification

For 100% LIHTC set-aside projects, annual recertifications are not required after January 1,2014. However, Owners
must recertify households at least once on the first anniversary of their initial tenancy.

For projects with less than 100% set-aside:

To ensure each unit is complying with the LIHTC income restrictions, GHURA requires (a) the owner to annually
recertify each tenant's income and household composition and (b) each tenant is to report certain changes in
income and household composition which occur between regularly scheduled Recertification.

If the income of the tenants in a unit who have been previously verified increases above 140 percent of the
applicable income limitation, the unit may continue to be counted as a low-income unit as long as the next
available unit of comparable or smaller size is occupied by a qualified low- income tenant, and the rent continues
to be restricted for the initial unit.

Each tenant's annual recertification is to be completed within one year of last Recertification. The request for
recertification shall be made between 60 and 90 days before the effective date, and it must clearly state that the
tenant has ten (10) calendar days in which to contact the owner to begin recertification processing. The notice
must also state the days and hours available for the interview, the information the tenant should bring to the
interview, and how and whom to contact to schedule the interview.

Upon re-verification of the tenant's income, the owner shall complete a new TIC, which shall be certified to
by the owner or owner's designee.

Past-Due Recertification

A recertification is considered past due if the TIC form for the tenant is not certified by tenant and owner within
twelve months of the last Recertification.

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 35 of 43

Rent Restrictions
Projects receiving Low-Income Housing Tax Credits after January 1, 1990 must comply with the following
procedures:

*  Units in the project must be rent-restricted to 30% of the imputed income limitations for each unit, based upon
HUD area median incomes and size of units. Rents are imputed by bedroom size in the following manner:
a unit which does not have a separate bedroom - 1 individual; and a unit with 1 or more separate
bedrooms - 1.5 individuals per bedroom.

* Gross rent does not include any payment for various rental assistance programs and supportive
service assistance as outlined in Section 42 of the Code. Gross rent must include any allowance for
utilities.

HUD publishes the area median incomes for each state and territory annually. Updated income limits must be

implemented pursuant to IRS Revenue Ruling 94-57, "Taxpayers may rely on a list of income limits released by

HUD until 45 days after HUD releases a new list of income limits, or

until HUD's effective date for the new list, whichever is later." Rents may be increased accordingly as the area

medianincomeincreases.

If the income of the tenants in a unit who have been previously verified increases above 140 percent of the
applicable income limitation, the unit may continue to be counted as a low-income unit as long as the next unit
of comparable or smaller size is occupied by a qualified low-income tenant, and the rent continues to be
restricted for the initial unit.

Eviction of Tenants
Once an eligible tenant has been certified and admitted to the project, the tenant may not be displaced solely
due to an increase in the tenant's household income beyond the restricted limit.

Audits
The project may be subject to a management audit by GHURA or its Authorized Delegate annually but, at a minimum,
once every three years. Notification of an audit shall be given to the owner at least 30 days prior to such audit.
The results of the management audit and the recommendations for corrective action to protect and maintain the
project shall be transmitted to the owner within thirty (30) days following the completion of the audit.

The purpose of the audit will be to conduct a physical inspection of the building and/or project, and, for at least
20 percent of the project's low-income units, to inspect the units and review the low-income certifications,
documentation supporting the certifications, and rent records for the tenants in those units. The audit may also
consist of a review of first year tenant records, a review of the documentation supporting the Annual Report, and
any other documentation necessary for GHURA to make a determination as to whether the project is not in
compliance with the Code.

When conducting tenant file reviews, GHURA's and its Authorized Delegate's reviews shall include, but not be
limited to:

= completed rental application, including certification of assets and disposal of assets, if applicable;

* tenantincome certification completed for move-in and current year, including all required
signatures and dates;

* income verification(s) completed and documented;

» assets verified in accordance with IRC regulations;

= student eligibility documentation;

» lease and lease addendums completed at move-in;

» utility allowance on file;

= review of first year tenant records which qualified the project initially for tax credits

The owner shall have a period of thirty (30) days in which to respond to the findings of the management
2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 36 of 43

audit. GHURA shall review the owner's response to determine the extent to which the issues raised in the
management audit letter are addressed. Findings, whether corrected or not, will be reported to the IRS.

See Section ‘Non-compliance Penalties’ for information on Notification to the IRS of any non- compliance
found in the management audit.

Rural Housing Service (RHS) and Tax-exempt Bond Issue Projects
In accordance with the published IRS guidelines on compliance monitoring, an exception may be granted to
RHS projects under its Section 515 program and buildings or projects of which 50 percent or more of the
aggregate basis is financed with the proceeds of tax-exempt bonds.

The IRC regulations allow for exception of a building from the inspection requirement if the building is
financed by RHS under the Section 515 program, the RHS inspects the building [under 7 CFR part 1930(C)],
and the RHS and the allocating agency enter into a memorandum of understanding, or other similar
arrangement, under which the RHS agrees to notify the allocating agency of the inspection results. Irrespective
of the physical inspection standard selected by the allocating agency, a low-income housing project under
Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code must continue to satisfy local health, safety and building codes. A
memorandum of understanding has not been executed between GHURA and RHS.

Annual Reports, QBTS, Compliance Monitoring Status Reports and other reports are still required of RHS
projects. Although GHURA has allowed the use of the RD 1944-8, the form does not determine eligibility
for specific LIHTC requirements. Owners need to determine whether the TIC will be used or a worksheet will
be attached to RD 1944-8 to determine eligibility under the IRC. Management audits shall be conducted as
indicated herein.

An owner who for some reason is not able to make any of the required certifications stated on the Annual Report
or other requirements must inform the Agency immediately of such inability, as well as explain the reason
for said inability.

Reporting Requirements
a. The LIHTC Annual Report must be submitted annually by February 1 of each year throughout the
compliance/extended use period.
b. PartII of the IRS Form 8609 must be completed by the owner and submitted with initial Annual
Report.
¢. Qualified Basis Tracking Sheets (QBTS) are submitted at a minimum annually with LIHTC Annual
Report until all set-asides are established.

d. Status Reports are submitted annually by owners with Annual Report to document and track the
continuance compliance of tax credit units throughout the compliance/extended-use period.

These forms must be sent in to GHURA or its Authorized Delegate at the address shown in Section II.

The Certification of Eligibility and LIHTC forms listed above are available from GHURA. Additionally, GHURA has
data regarding HUD area median incomes, maximum rental rates, income verification information and third-
party verification forms.

Fees

A compliance monitoring fee of up to $50 per unit for all units (for the 1st year full inspection) and

$25 per unit for all units (once every 3 years after 1t year full inspection) within each project shall be charged
annually for administrative expenses. This fee shall be submitted with the LIHTC Annual Report for each
year of the compliance/extended-use period. GHURA reserves the right to adjust fees due to changing
circumstances annually each January 1. It will be the responsibility of GHURA to inform the owner of any
changes in the annual compliance fee prior to the submission of fees. The compliance monitoring fee will
be effective as of the Placed-in-Service date for the first building.

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 37 of 43

Non-compliance Penalties
The penalty for non-compliance with the LIHTC Program is the potential recapture of the credits awarded and
interest on the amount recaptured. The Internal Revenue Service shall determine penalties for non-
compliance.

Upon determination by GHURA of non-compliance with the LIHTC Program, the owner shall be notified and
given thirty (30) days to correct any discovered violations. In accordance with the Internal Revenue
Service's published guidelines on compliance monitoring, GHURA will be required to notify the IRS within
forty-five (45) days after the end of the thirty-day correction period, whether or not the non-compliance is
corrected. GHURA will be given the opportunity on the IRS form to indicate whether the owner has
corrected the non-compliance. GHURA may extend the correction period, up to a total of six (6) months, if
itis determined by GHURA that good cause exists for granting such an extension. In such case, the IRS will not
be notified until the end of the extended correction period.

Extended Use Period

After the initial 15-year compliance period is the Extended Use Period, GHURA is no longer required to
report instances of non-compliance to the IRS. Compliance during the Extended Use Period (EU Compliance
Policy) will concentrate on enforcing the requirements of the LIHTC program through the term of the
Declaration of Restrictive Covenants for Low Income Housing Credit recorded on the property. The EU
Compliance Policy is largely based on the procedures of the initial compliance period. Unless noted below, the
policy and procedure for compliance during the initial compliance period shall continue to apply to the
extended use period.

Effective Date

The EU Compliance Policy shall be effective on the first day after the expiration of the initial 15- year
compliance period for the last building placed in service in the project. Generally, the extended use
compliance period will begin on January 1 of the year after the expiration of the initial 15-year compliance
period of the last building placed in service and be in effect until the end of the extended use period.

Income and Rent Set Aside

Owners are subject to the Section 42 occupancy and rent restrictions required in the Declaration of Land Use
Restrictive Covenants for Low-Income Housing Credits.

Student Households

As GHURA wants to ensure that properties in the extended use period are not used as dormitory housing, a
modified student eligibility requirement will be enforced. During the extended use period, a household
comprised entirely of full-time students will qualify as long as at least one member of the household is an
independent student or is a student in grades Kindergarten through 12 (including home schooled minors
studying course material within these grades). An independent student is defined as one who is not claimed as
a dependent on his/her parent’s tax return (proof required).

Available Unit Rule / 140% Rule

For projects which include market rate units, the Available Unit Rule and the 140% Rule do not apply during
the extended use period. The percentage of tax credit units as specified in the Declaration of Restrictive
Covenants for Low Income Housing Credits must be maintained throughout the extended use period.

Certification and Recertification

Certification of tenants at the time of move-in shall be required during the extended use period according to
the same procedure as the compliance period. Recertification of tenants will not be required during the
extended use period. However, if any adults are added to the household, then the household must be

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 38 0f 43

recertified.

Unit Transfers

During the extended use period, unit transfers are allowed without a new income qualification.
Documentation of all unit transfers that occur shall be submitted as part of the Reporting
Requirements.

Reporting Requirements

1. TheLIHTC Annual Report must be submitted annually by February 1 of each year throughout the
extended use period.

2. Status Reports are submitted annually by owners with the Annual Report to document and track the
continuing compliance of tax credit units throughout the extended use period.

Site Audits

Commencing within three years after the expiration of the Compliance Period, site audits for projects
may be conducted at least once every five years. Projects that have substantial outstanding non-
compliance beyond the correction period based on the findings of the most recent site audit may be subject
to more frequent site audits.

Owner Inspection
Owners shall conduct an annual physical inspection of each unitand common areasin the project.
Correction Period and Non-compliance Penalties

Upon determination by GHURA of non-compliance with the LIHTC Program during the extended use period,
the owner shall be notified and given thirty (30) days to correct any discovered violations. GHURA may
extend the correction period on a case-by-case basis, up to a total of six

(6) months, if it is determined by GHURA that good cause exists for granting such an extension. Owners may
request GHURA to review all outstanding non-compliance issues for a property once per calendar year after the
initial correction period. Any owner and constituent entities involved in management and ownership of a
project with an unresolved finding of non-compliance beyond the initial correction period may be deemed
to be Not in Good Standing by GHURA’s Fiscal Department. Owners must clear all outstanding non-
compliance issues to be deemed in Good Standing with GHURA.

Appeal

All appeals shall be resolved in accordance Administrative Procedure for GHURA’s Low Income Housing Tax
Credit Program Appeal Review. A copy of this Procedure is included as Appendix 3 of this QAP.

Other
High-Cost Area Designation. Newly constructed buildings located outside of designated Difficult to
Develop Areas or Qualified Census Tracts qualify as a high-cost area. The additional LIHTC available from the
“basis boost” will be used to offset the high cost of construction and land throughout the island.

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 39 of 43

Appendix 1

Income Averaging Guidelines

GHURA Guidelines for Utilizing the Income Averaging Minimum Set-Aside for Applications under Consideration or
Already Approved

The Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2018 establishes income averaging as a new minimum set-aside Election for new
LIHTC developments. It allows LIHTC Qualified Units to serve households earning as much as 80% of Area Median Income
(AMI) so long as the average income limit of the Qualified Units is 60% or less of AMI. Designated income levels for Qualified
Units may be set at 10% increments between 20% and 80% of AMI. GHURA will accept proposals for utilizing income
averaging in application that are under consideration, have already been approved or have already initially closed,
subject to the requirements outlined below.

General Requirements for All Income Averaging Proposals:

= Utilization of income averaging requires GHURA consent

*  Proposals will not be accepted without evidence of approval by the syndicator/investor
* (Changesinthe AMIbands must be supported by a market study

* Proposals must maintain the requirements of any GHURA funding award

* Arevised application and associated exhibits may be required

» Ifthe use of income averaging triggers higher fees for compliance monitoring, the increase will need to be
incorporated in the project budget

Additional Requirements for Developments that have already initially closed:

= Proposals will only be considered for Developments that have not yet executed Form 8609

»  The proposal must continue to meet the requirements of the Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code

» Set-aside elections made in the Extended Housing Commitment executed at initial closing and recorded at
the Recorder’s Office may need to be amended

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 40 of 43

Appendix 2

Market Study

Section 42(m)(1)(A)(iii) of the Internal Revenue Code, GHURA requires a comprehensive Market Study of the
housing needs of low-income individuals in the area to be served by the project. The Market Study is to be conducted by
a disinterested party approved by GHURA and must be submitted as part of the application. The Market Study shall be
completed at the Owner's expense. Any applicant that fails to submit a Market Study or submits a Market Study dated
more than 6 months earlier than the date of application shall be returned to the applicant and the application will not
receive further consideration.

The Market Study shall address the following information:

A statement of the competence of the market analyst.

Adescription of the proposed site.

Demographic analysis of the number of households in the market area which are income eligible and can
afford to pay the rent. Estimate of capture rates for the market areas.

Geographic definition and analysis of the market area.

Identification of the project including location, unit counts, income levels and target population. Market
Study must be consistent with the proposed project.

Analysis of household sizes and types in the market.

A description of comparable developments in the market area.

Analysis of practically available rents, vacancy rates, operating expenses and turnover rates of comparable
properties in the marketarea.

Analysis of practically available rents, vacancy rates and turnover rates of market rate properties in the market
area. Projected operating funds and expenses, when available at the time of the study.

Expected market absorption of the proposed rental housing, including a description of the effect of the market
area.

Identification and commentary of proposed projects in the market areas.

Analysis of market demand for tenants with special housing needs when applicable.

Analysis of impacts of development to the area’s existing education, public safety, and utilities infrastructure.

Projects that are requesting credits from eligible basis generated from a Community Service Facility as
defined in Section 42(d)(4)(C)(iii) must provide a market study that addresses the following:

A description of Services provided that improve the quality of life for community residents.
The market area and demand for services provided.

The applicability of service provided to the community.

The affordability of the services provided to persons of 60% AMGI or less.

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 41 of 43

Appendix 3

Administrative Procedure for LIHTC Program Appeal Review

Purpose

During GHURA'’s competitive evaluation and selection processes, an Applicant may, within seven (7) calendar days
of the date of formal notice of denial by GHURA, the Applicant may request for reconsideration and submit a request
for an Appeal Review of GHURA'’s decision that results in the non-selection of a proposed project. The purpose of
these guidelines is to provide procedural requirements for appeal where authorized pursuant to the Qualified
Allocation Plan (“QAP”).

Background

1. Applicants are only eligible to request an Appeal if the applicant has received a non-selection decision.
An Applicant’s request for appeal shall be submitted in writing to the Executive Director of GHURA
within seven (7) calendar days of the date indicated on the Non-Selection Letter. The written request for
appeal must be received at the GHURA Main Office at 117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajana, GU 96910.

3. The Appeal process shall conclude within ten (10) calendar days from the receipt of the Appeal request.
At the outset of the evaluations and selection process, GHURA will identify an Appeal Review panel
consisting of 3-5 individuals from outside of the Research, Planning and Evaluation Division.

5. GHURA, at the conclusion of the scoring process, identifies three 3-hour windows for Appeal Review
meetings. Any Appeal Review will take place at GHURA (117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajaia, GU 96910).

Appeal Review Committee
6. The Appeal Review Committee will consist of at least three employees appointed by the GHURA Executive

Director. The Appeal Review Committee will be appointed prior to the initial announcement of awards.
Appeal Review Committee members may include, but are not limited to, the Deputy Director, Division
Managers, and Senior Staff.

7. The Chief Planner is an advisory member of the Appeal Review Committee. The Chief Planner does not
participate in Appeal Review Committee deliberations but will attend the meetings and provide information
or answer questions regarding the QAP process, as needed by the Committee.

8. The Appeal Review Meetings will be moderated by GHURA Legal Counsel.

General Procedure
9. Responsibility rests with the Applicant to prove that the decision that resulted in the non-selection of the

Application was incorrect and that the Application met all QAP requirements, program requirements, and
statutory requirements.

10. The Appeal Review Committee will use sound and justifiable reasoning to determine whether the Applicant
submitted sufficient documentation that meets the requirements of the QAP to receive a particular score.

11. The issue in each case is whether the Applicant met the requirements of the QAP.

12. GHURA is not bound by a mistake in scoring in a previous round. The only question that will be considered

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 42 of 43

by the Appeal Review Committee is whether the submitted Application was correctly or incorrectly scored
in the current round.

13. Scoring is to be strictly based on the documents submitted by the Applicant at application submission for
the year at issue.

14. Mistakes in other Applications should not be considered unless the mistake impacted the scoring of the
Application under review.

15. Appeal Review Committee members must review the presented issues under the process and procedures
of the QAP.

16. The Appeal Review Committee should not discuss any appeal with any elected official, local government
representative, member of the Applicant team or member of the GHURA staff involved in the scoring of the
Application prior to making its decision. Likewise, once an Applicant has requested an Appeal Review,
GHURA staff involved in the scoring of the Application should not discuss the details of any appeal with any
elected official, local government representative, member of the Applicant team or Appeal Review Committee
member prior to making its decision.

Documentation
17. The Appeal Review Committee will only consider documents of record in making its final decision.

Documents of record include (1) GHURA Scoring Documentation (including GHURA verification
documentation used in the scoring of the Application), (2) the Application submitted for the applicant
funding cycle, and (3) correspondence between the Applicant and GHURA during the scoring process.
GHURA Scoring Documentation includes documentation used as part of the scoring of Applications in the
current application round including the QAP, GHURA guidance, Q&A, instructions, tracking sheets,
summaries and verification documentation. Additional documentation not specifically allowed by these
rules cannot be submitted by either party during the Appeal process.

18. Only documentation that meets the requirements of the QAP will be considered by the Appeal Review
Committee in determining whether the Application was correctly scored.

19. Applicants may not clarify (either by explanation or additional documentation) a “scoring” category in the
QAP during scoring or during the Appeal process. GHURA must rely on the documents submitted by the
Applicant in the submitted Application in making their decision.

Appeal Review Meeting Procedure
20. GHURA and the Applicant must submit a written summary of the issues to the Appeal Review Committee no

less than five days prior to the Appeal Review Meeting. The summary shall be limited to ten pages exclusive
of attachments.

21. Atthe meeting, GHURA staff will first present its argument(s) in defense of its scoring decision. After GHURA
staff's presentation, the Applicant will present its argument(s) in response to the GHURA scoring decision.
GHURA will have an opportunity to respond to the Applicant’s presentation.

22. Each initial presentation shall be limited to one hour. GHURA’s response time will be limited to 20 minutes.

23. Appeal Review Committee members are free to ask either the Applicant or GHURA staff a question that they
believe needs to be clarified. Should the Committee require an answer to a question after the Appeal Review
Committee meeting, the Committee shall present the question to the GHURA Legal Counsel who shall obtain
the answer to the question and forward it to the Appeal Review Committee. Both the Applicant and the
GHURA staff shall have the opportunity to respond to the question and the response must be provided
within 48 hours of the request.

24. Discussion of the merits of either position shall take place between Appeal Review Committee members

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



Page 43 of 43

after the Appeal Review Committee meeting and not during the meeting.

25. This is not a court proceeding. Neither the Applicant nor GHURA staff have the ability to call witnesses or
examine each other during the meeting. However, opportunity shall be afforded all parties to be represented
by legal counsel and to respond and present evidence on all issues involved, subject to the documentation
limitations above.

26. Questions by the Applicant or GHURA staff must be directed to the GHURA Legal Counsel after the meeting
is concluded.

27. The Appeal Review Committee’s final decision will be transmitted to both the Applicant and to the GHURA
Executive Director by the GHURA Legal Counsel.

2025 LIHTC QAP Final



GHURA

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
Aturidat Ginima’ Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan
117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajana, GU 96910
Qa. — ‘,5’ Phone: (671) 477-9&/51 : .Fz%x: (671) 300-7565 - TTY: (671)472-3701 EQUAL FOUS
ebsite: www.ghura.org OPFPORTUN

*
5
£
av 't‘i"’j

gn‘\(“’snv'g

le

PREFACE

Pursuant to Title 5 Guam Code Annotated, Chapter 43, Section 43202 — Performance Reviews of
Agency Heads. “The governing Boards for all agencies, instrumentalities, or entities shall issue
performance reviews of the Chief Executive selected for that agency six (6) months after
appointment of the said Chief Executive and every twelve (12) months thereafter that the Chief
Executive is retained by the Governing Board. Each performance review shall document the Chief
Executive’s performance, accomplishments, and the respective Governing Board’s reasons for
retaining the said Chief Executive.”

GHURA does not discriminate against persons with disabilities.
The Chief Planner has been designated as Section 504 Coordinator.

Board Meeting of OCtoBar 2y 235! o the above address and telephone numbers. PAGE 11 of 48



Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero
Govemor of Guam

Joshua F. Tenorio
Lt. Governor of Guam

John J. Rivera
Chairman

Nathanael P. Sanchez
Vice Chairman

Anisia S. Delia
Commissioner

Emilia F. Rice
Commissioner

Victor R. Torres
Commissioner

Karl E. Corpus
Resident Commissioner

Elizabeth F. Napoli
Executive Director

Fernando B. Esteves
Deputy Director

GHURA

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority

Aturidat Ginima’ Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan
117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajana, GU 96910

Phone: (671)477-9851 - Fax: (671) 300-7565 - TTY: (671)472-3701 EQUAL FOUSING
Website: www.ghura.org OFPFORIUNITY

SUMMARY OF EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (EMPE) FOR

Elizabeth F. Napoli — Executive Director
Review Period: 07/08/2024 — 07/07/2025 (Annual)

Pursuant to SGCA §43202, the GHURA Board of Commissioners decided during
their 07/08/2019, regularly scheduled board meeting, that each board member will
evaluate both the Executive Director and Deputy Director, and for the completed
ratings to be submitted directly to the Human Resources Division for compilation.

Based on the ratings submitted, Ms. Elizabeth F. Napoli earned an overall “Highly
Satisfactory” performance evaluation rating as GHURA’s Executive Director for
the annual review period (07/08/2024 — 07/07/2025). The performance evaluation
was based on the following factors:

1. Leadership

2. Strategic Planning

3. Communicates Vision and Direction

4. Champions Innovation

5. Promotes Ethics

6. Builds Relationships

7. Decision Making

8. Leads Change

9. Inspires and Directs Action

10. Promotes Diversity

11. Accountability/Fiscal/Fiduciary Responsibility
12. Business Acumen

13. Effective Operation & Maintenance of HUD Plans and Projects

As a result of the “Highly Satisfactory” performance evaluation, the GHURA
Board of Commissioners retain Ms. Elizabeth F. Napoli as the Executive Director
of the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority. Pursuant to BOC Resolution
FY2022-006, there will be no salary increment for the Executive Director’s position.

Compiled by:

(frrr 03-05 20 i jpprn % — _ qls|zors
C.N. Ongklungel K K. Bersamin, DBA, SPHR, SHRM-SCP
Personnel Specialist II Personnel Services Administrator

GHURA does not discriminate against persons with disabilities.
The Chief Planner has been designated as Section 504 Coordinator.
The Coordinator can be contacted at the above address and telephone numbers.

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025 PAGE 12 of 48



9 jo | abed £€202/20/10 — (3dN3) uonenjeA] asuewLIOLIdd Judwabeue aAlIN29Xx3

*Ayjeuonouny pue sajjuawe ulspow Yim ajajdwod siepenbpeasy Auoyiny Buisnoy mau jJo uononisuo)

‘sa1oua}adwon [9A8) IS pue abpajmouy asealoul 0} pue|st JJO pue uo yjoq sejiunpoddo Bulutesy yym yels apiroid o)

*S39IA1aS 92ueyuS 0} ABOjoUYD8) UIBPOW JO 8SN 9Ssealoul pue saljioe) no Jo apesbdn ‘Buluies) 8o1AIes Jawojsno Bulob-uo apirold
"swiooisseo uoneonpa jeads pue Ajoe) Buial jeuoisuel) YinoA ‘sanijioe)

Kouabiawa Apspje Jnpe ‘s)yueq pooj ‘sI18juad suazio Joluas ‘uonisinboe juswdinbe Ajojes ‘suonels aly ‘swooissejo Yejs peay apnjoul
sjosloid asay ] ‘saAndalqo asay) 19aw o} sweiboid Burpoddns pue sbuipjing 6uionlisuod pue sisuped Jno yim spasu Ajunwwod Buikypuapy
*S}iUN JO SUOIBAOUSI puB ‘aInjonJselul

jJo epeibdn epnpul 0} spun YHNHO Jo uoneziulepow Bulob-ug ‘spun Buisnoy olgnd jo weiboid soueusjurew juabljip e uejulepy

(seanoelqo o1bajeng ay) 0} pajejay) (s)AAnody

‘saAnoalqo pue [eob s Ajoyiny ay) Joaw 0) papasu sapljioe} pue sjoo) ay) Aousbe ay) epiroid o)

‘salou8}adwod |9A9] [|INS Pue |BoI1uUyd9) 9akojdwa sadueyus o)

"S80IAISS Jualo Ajjenb pue aAisuodsal spiaoid o)

*SaIUNWIWOD INO JO spaau ay) Buissasse ul suoneziuebio Juswuianob pue Jyoid-uou ypm sdiysuoiersl ino uayjbuans pue sdueyus o
"SJUBID YYNHO 410} sawoy Auejiues pue ajes ‘Juadep apiaosd o)

(Aupqisuodsau jo ease weiboid yoea ssaippy) SaA2alqQo ueld sibajens g

‘JuswiaAoidwl AUNWWOD JO XSB) UoWWOoD
ay} ui ajedioiped o) esudiejua ayeaud jo Juswabeinoous ybnouy) pue sweiboid |ejuswuianob [eo0] pue [eieps) djqejieAe |le ybnoiy) ‘saljie)
awooul Moj Joy Buljjemp Alejiues pue ‘Jusdap ‘ajes Jo uoisiroid Aq pue juswdofaAasp Ajunwiwod jo Buiuueld tedoid Ag ‘sapiuNWWOD JO [eMaUS]
pue Juswdojarepal Alepio 8y} Aq ‘suonipuod Jybijq pue wnjs Jo uoneuiwe ay) Aq sjdoad s,weno o aieyjom pue Ajajes ‘Yyeay ay) sjowoid o)

(Juswa)e)S UOISSI UOISO) UOISSIN 'V

(ueuwuieyD) BIBAIY "I UYOr :H¥31VvH 40 FNVN (annnoax3 Aq pajeidwo)) INIWSSISSV-413S - | Ldvd

ey I ERAS T S202/L0/L0  ©L Z02/80/L0  woid
yoday 10} uoseay yoday jo pousd

8¢l - (payissejdun) 1030311Qq 3AINISX] ITOdVN "4 H138VvZI13
‘oN @j @2/Aojdwz 8311 / uoneayisse|) uonisod awepN aakojdw3y

Ky prmery s o Boreey ey

(3dIN3) NOILLVNTVAI 3ONVINNOH4¥3d LNIWIDOVNVIN JAILNDIXT
ALROHLNY TYM3N3Y NVEdN ANV ONISNOH NVNO

PAGE 13 of 48

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025



9 jo Z abed €202/L0/10 — (3dW3I) uonenjea] asuewiopad Judwabeuely aAlynaaxgy

‘gjdoad ino djay pue Ajunwwiod ino asueApe 0} Ajunpoddo Jayjoue s| auojsajiw Mau yoe3 -bBujuaddey sbuiy) jeasb Auew os
ale aljay| ‘lojoalig aAnndax3 ay} jo diysiapes| ay} Japun Aouabe jealb e aq 0} anunuod 0} Ajjige S,YHNHO Ul JUSpyuod We |

(uejdq o1baenS 8y} Ul payiuapl saAldalqo ay) Bunjeaw o} sajejal )i Se ouewsopad |[BISAO SSOSSY) dduewdopudd jo Artewwnsg Qg

PAGE 14 of 48

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025



9 jo ¢ abed

€202/20/10 — (3dN3) uonjenjeA] asuewiopad Juawabeueyy aanoaxgy

[]

sp02lo4g puv suvjg (1 H Jo 2ouvudpuipy p uonviaodQ aanpoaffi €1

uawndy ssauisng ‘7|

dppqisuodsay davtonplg / (posty / Aajqopunoddy |

Apsaaa1(q sapowodd 01

uonoy spoa241(q punv sasndsuy -

a8uvy) spvagy -

Supyvpy uois1oq

sdiysuoyvjoy sppng

So1Yyy7 sapomodg -

uoyvaouuy suorduvy)) -

UONO241( PUD UOISL SIIDIIUNUIO)) *

Sutuuv)g 15wy -

[]
[]
[]
[]
[]
[]
[]
[]
[]
[]
[]
[ ]

L O Oy L O L Oy g o Ly D Oy
L) Ly O Oy g Ly Ly L Oy ) D A
L L O O O Ly O oy Oy O o Qg 4
DA X X DX X DX X O X X DX X X

diysiopvay -

Aiojoejsnes jeuibiepy fiojoejsiyeg | Aiojoejsies Buipuejsing

-un

AbiH

(yoeo 0} sayjdde jey; bunes ayj 3o0yo)
Josiuadng Aq pejeidwo) :S3AILNDIAXT 40 SNOLLVLOADXI - Il Livd

8zL (pawissejpun) 1039941Q 2AINOAXT
‘oN @} 99Aojdw3 ol}LL / UoHEOISSE]D UORISOd

IMOdVN "4 H138VvZI13
awepN aakojdwz

gy sy oy o S s

(3dIN3) NOILVNTVYAT IONVINNO4¥3d LNIINIOVNVIN JAILLNDTXT
ALR—MOHLNY TVM3NIY NVaAaN ANV ONISNOH NVNO

PAGE 15 of 48

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025



9 jo p abed

€202/L0/10 — (3dW3) uonenjeA] asuewopad Juswabeuey aAiIN29xX]

-Kyu3ayur yum KouasSe siyy Surpes pue suonen3ay/Aorjod 03 SuLISYpPE 0} JUSUIIWWOD JSEJPEed)s B SIJRISUOWIP ZI' JOJOAII(] SANNIIXT

1UONBIYNSNL/SIUIWUWO))

[]

[ ]

[]

X

(532 H [v42pa,] pup o104 01 20U2.42Ypy) :plepue)S UBULIONII ]

*Pasnd0} AJUNWIWOD PUe JLIUSD JUSI[D ST ZI'T J0JOAII(] dANNIIXT
:IOBIYNSN {/SPUIWWO))

[]

[]

[]

[]

X

(Sno0,] 4owioisn)) :piepuels UBULIONIdJ

Aioyoejsiyeg
-un

fi03)oejsnies

Aiojoeysiyes
Ay6iH

Buipuejsing

(tosinuedng Aq psjaidwo)) SAYVANVIS - Il 19Vd

8¢L

*oN @l @2Aojdwigy

(payissejoun) 1030211 aANI3X]

9311 / uoyeIlISSE|D) UONISOd

IMOdVN "4 H138VvzZIn3

awepN aalojdwg

Sy s e e S oy

VAAHD

(3dIW3) NOILYNTVAI IONVINNO4¥Id LNIJWIDVYNVIN JALLNIIXI
ALRMOHLNY TVM3INIY NVE¥N ANV ONISNOH NVNO

PAGE 16 of 48

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025



9jo G abed

€202/20/10 — (3dIW3) uonenjeaz asuewiopad Juawabeuely aAlNsax3y

YANOISSTINIANOD TUdpIsay sndio) “J [Hed]

SYANOISSITNINOD 40 AVOL VINHD "PQUIBIA Juedep

SHANOISSINIANOD 4O AVOd VINHD 1RPQUISIA "3oTy °J eljiury

STANOISSTAINOD 0 AAVOd VANHD RqUSIA "DeZIYs] "L queiy

SYANOISSITNINOD 4O AAVOL VINHD “PqUIBIA "el[3( °S eIsiluy

—_— .

SYANOISSTNINOD 40 AVOL VINHD "ueuliley) 3031A "Zoypueg °J [PeUtieN

ST0T '8¢ oung o5e(

A¥OLOVASILYVSNN[ ]

IVYNIDUVIN[]

SYANOISSTNINOD 40 MIVOd VHNHO BIDATY [ uyof

NIVL13¥ LON[ ] NIVL3¥ X

AYOLOVASILYS ATHOIH[ ]

AYOL1OV4SILVS[ ] ONIAGNV.LSLNO[X

(AI ‘TIT ‘TI ‘T S1pq uo paspq 3uyvd [jp4240)) ONILVY 11VIIAO —- A 1dVd

PAGE 17 of 48

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025



9 jo 9 abeyq £202/20/10 — (3dW3) uonenjeA] asueuliopad Juswabeuely aannsaxgy

ainjeubis coao&:.m

Yot pronf o Irysipery b pollos b vk of b gy

(‘uvd yuaudo)aasp ; uoyonipas 2ouvuii0fiad Suipi3a. SJUIUDILZDSIP A0 SJUIUWIILSD ‘SULIIUOD ‘SUOIIDIL AuD Ipnoul Avpy) :spudwIWO)) ddKojdury

("pajoajes st uondo sy} y1 ‘Auojepuew aie sjuswiwiod safojdui) Anduo)) jou QA—_H_

.:.o:cwm_

-33A071dN3 A9 3131dINOD

8Z. (pauissejoun) 1030a11q aANoaxgy ITOdVN ‘4 HL3gVvzZI13
*ON (| @2Aojdwz 3L / uonelIsse|) uonisod awep aakojdwg

(3dW3) NOILVNTVAT IONVINNO4¥Id LNIWIDVNVIN JALLNDIXT
ALRIOHLNV TVM3INIY NVadN ANV ONISNOH WNVYNO

PAGE 18 of 48

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025



9 Jo | ebed £202/L0/10 — (3dIN3) uolienjeA3 eduelwouad Juswabeuely aARndexXg

‘Ayjeuonouny pue senuswe ulepow yym ajejdwod siepenbpesy Auoyiny Buisnoy mau jo uoponiisuo)

‘s010U8)odWo9 |9A3] ||INS pue abpajmou) asealoul 0} Pue|s! JJo pue uo yioq sapiunuoddo Bulues yum yejs apiroid of

-S801AI8S 9oUBLUS 0} ABojouyos) uIBPOW JO 8SN 8SEaIOUl PUB SBl[Ioe) Jno Jo epelbdn ‘Bujules) eoies Jawojsnd Bulob-uo apiroid
‘swooJsse|o uoneonpae [eoads pue Ayjioe} Buiall jeuonisuel) YyinoA ‘sanijioe)

Kouabiawe Auopje Jnpe ‘syueq poo} ‘sisjuad suazio Joluas ‘uonisinboe Juswdinbe Ajajes ‘suojels ail ‘SWOOISSEJO We)S pesy apnjoul
sjoeloid asay] "saAdalqo esey) Jesw o) sweiboid Bunioddns pue sBulpjing Buionuisuoo pue sisuped No Yim spasu AJunwiwod buifyuap|
"S}UN JO SUOl}BAOUS) puB ‘ainjonJiseljul

jo spesBbdn epnjo ui 0} syun YHNHO Jo uopeziuspow Buiob-u O ‘spun Buis noy olgnd jo weibo id soueusjulew Juabijip e ulejuieiy

(seAnoslqo 216s1eNS BY) 0} pajeey) (S)ANAROY

*SOA}99[qo pue [eob s Auoyny ay) Jesw o} papasu sapljioe) pue sjoo} 8y} Aousbe ay) spinoid o]

"saloua}edwod [aA8] |IDiS pue |ediuyos) 9akojdwa aoueyus o

"S92IAISS JUal0 AJijenb pue aAisuodsal apiroid o]

*SaNIUNWIWOD JNO JO Spaau ay) Buissesse ul suoneziueblo Juswuianob pue yyoid-uou yum sdiysuoneras uno usyjbuais pue soueyuS O
"SJULIO YHNHO 10} sewoy Auejues pue ajes ‘Juadap apiaoid o)

(Aunqisuodsau jo eale weiboid yoes sseippy) SaAd2lqo ueld dibsjenss g

‘JuswaAoidwi AJunwwod JO ¥Se) uoWwod
ay) ul ajedioied o} esudisjue ajeaud jo Juswabeinoous yBnoiy; pue sweiboid [ejuswuianob [ed0] pue [eiaps) s|qejieAe |[e ybnouy} ‘saljiwey
awoou| moj 10} Buljemp Aejues pue ‘Juaoep ‘ajes Jo uoisiroid Aq pue JuswdojeAsp Ajunwwod jo Gujuuerd Jadoud Aq ‘seijiunwiwod Jo |lemausl
pue juswdojenapai Alepo 8y} Aq ‘suopipuod Jybiiq pue wnjs Jo uoneuiwie 8y} Aq sjdoad s,weno Jo aiejjam pue Ayajes ‘yyeay ayj syowoid o}

(Juswele)s uoIsSI\ UOHISO) UOISSIN VY

2ereS ) IR VN 431V 40 INVN (eAnnosx3 Aq pajeidwo)) INIWSSISSV-I13S - | LAvVd

o< (1) enuuy-us] | §202/L0/0 L pZ02/80/L0  woid
Hoday 0} uoseay Hoday jo pouad

8cL (payisse|oun) J030211Q dAIIND9X] ITOdVN "4 H138VvZI13
*ON | @2Aojdwig 8311 / uonedyisse|) uonisod awepN aaAojdwgz

Ly s et o By vy

VINHO

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025

(3dINT) NOLLYNTVAT IONVINNOH4¥3d LNIWIDVNVYIN FAILNDOAX
ALINOHLNYV TVM3N3Y NvgaN ANV SNISNOH NVND



9 Jo Z ebed £202/L0/10 - (3dW3) uolenjeA3 sduew.opied Juswebeuely eAndexy

(uejq 216a1RLS By} Ul payuap! SaARdalqo ay) Buesw o) sejelal )i se aouewlopad [[eiano0 ssossy) oadsueuliopdd jo Aiewwnsg Qg




9 jo ¢ abed

£202/L0/10 — (3dW3) uoljenjeA3 eduew.opad Juswabeue)y aApndaxgy

[]

spoaloag puv suvlg (q1H Jo 2ouvuapupy » uoyviadQ) aandaffiy s1

uawnoy ssauisng ‘7|

Giqisuodsay Lmwionply / pIst] / Gi1goIunoddy I

Ap1s4241(J Sp0m04 O

uoydy s1o2.41q puv sasdsuy

aSuvy) sppay -

Supyppy uoisraq

sdiysuoynoay spiing

SO1Y35] Sajouwioig

uoyvaouuy suorduny) -,

UOYI241(J pUD UOIS1| SHIDIIUNWIWIO)

Sutuuvyg nSawag

[]
[]
]
[]
[]
[]
[]
]
[]
[]
]
[]

L O O O L O oy oy Oy oy oy g
L O O O O O O o Oy o oy 4
OO O o O Oy o O o L o)

diysiappo] -

Kio3oejsnies jeuibiep Kioyoejsnes | Aiojoejsiyes

AyBiH

/

BuipuejsinQ

(yoee o} sayjdde jey} bunes ey} ¥o8y2)
Josiuadng Aq pejejdwo) :SIAILNDIXI 40 SNOILYLOIdXI - Il Livd

8Z. (pauyisse|dun) 1039a41g aANd3X3
"ON @i eefojdw3 oj31L / uopedyISSe|D UolISod

ITOdVN "4 H138VZI13
awepN @9/Aojdwz

(3dINT) NOILVNTVAI SONVINNOANId LNIWIDVNVIN JALLNIAXT
ALRIOHLNY TVYM3N3Y NvEdN ANV ONISNOH AVNO




9 Jo i abed £202/,0/10 — (3dIN3) uoienjeas souewioped Juswabeuel aaRndex3

‘UONRIYNSNL/SHUIWTIO))

(82 ANH 1v42pa, puv £o1]04 01 20u2.42Yypy) PIEPUER)S IUBUWLIOLIdJ

:UONBIYNSNL/SHUIWWO))

/[ (sno0,] 412wo03sny)) plepue)S NUBULIOLJ

Kiojoejsiyes jeuibiep Kioyoejsnes | Aioyoejspes 6 K:uumu.-o
-un AuBiH (toswuedng Aq pejeidwo)) SGEVANVLS - I LdVd

8zZ.L (payissejoun) Jojoaaiqg aAlNdAX3] ITOdVYN ‘4 H1L39VvZI13
‘ON @] @eAojdwz oJ311 / uonesyisse|) uopisod swepN aakojdwgy

s e et om e g

VINHO

(3dIN3) NOLLVNTVAT SONVINNOAUId LNIFWIADOVNVIN JAILNDIXI
ALRIOHLNYV TVM3N3Y Nv8dN ANV ONISNOH AVNO




9 jo G abed

€202Z/20/10 — (3dW3) uonenjeA3 souewIoudd juswabeuely aApndaxgy

AANOISSTININO)D 1U3PISRY  "sndlo) “H [1e3]

SYANOISSTNINOD A0 AVOTd VANHD PRI JUBdEA

SYANOISSIAINOD 40 AVOd VINHD TPqUIdIA 900y “q #Iury

—
STANOISSININOD 40 AAVOLd VINHD "RAUIBJA "SI0, Y I03IA

-

SYANOISSININOD 4O AVOLd VINHD PRQUIBA "8l[3( °S Bisluy

SYANOISSTNIAOD 40 MAVOL VINHD "UswlIIey?) dIA "Zoydues °d [PEUBIEN

A¥OLOVASILYVSNA[ ]

TYNIDYVIA[ ]

SUANOISSININOD 40 V04 VANHD "UeulIIey) "€IdATy T uyof

NIV13¥ LON[ ] z_<._.m~_w

AYOLOVASILYS ATHOIH[ ]

ANOL1OV4SILVS[ |
(I ‘TIT ‘II ‘I s1vd uo pasvq 3uyv. [jp4240) HNILVYE TIVIIAO - A Livd




9 Jo g abed

£202/L0/10 — (3dIN3) uolen|eA3 sduewlouad Juswabeuely aARndexz

anjeubis Aekojdwz

(-pajosyas s1 uondo sy} i ‘Aiojepuew aJe spuawwod 8afo/dwy) aNdU0)) Jou OG_H_

-33A07TdN3

.EoE.QN_

A8 31317dNOD

: 14 (payissejoun) 1030841Q dARNI8XT ITOdVN "4 H138vZI13
"ON @i ®ekojdw3 9fjLL / uonyedljisse|) uopisod

awepN aakojdw3

(3dIN3) NOLLVNTVAI SONVINNOANId LNIJWIODOVNVIN AILLNDAXI
ALRIOHLNYV TVYM3NIY Nv8dN ANV ONISNOH AVNO

s o e e b

VINHO

PAGE 24 of 48

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025



9 jo | abed £202/,0/1.0 — (3dW3) uonenjeAs asuewioudd Juswabeueyy aANdaxy

‘Ajijeuonouny pue saniuawe uispow ypm a)3idwod siapenbpeay Ajsoyiny Buisnoy mMau Jo uononisuo)

‘saloua}adwod [aAs) [INs pue abpajmouy aseasdul 0} pue|s! o pue uo yjoq saiiunpoddo Bulures yum yels spinosd o

"S82IAI9S 80ueyua 0} ABojouyDIa) UISPOW JO SN asealdul pue saijljioe} Jno Jo apesbdn ‘Buluiel; 8o1A8s Jswolsnd Bulob-uo apinold
"SWI00JSSEO uoneonpa [eloads pue Ajjioe) BulAl jeuonisuel) YyinoA ‘seijioe)

Kousbiaws Asp|a JNpe ‘syueq poo} ‘sISjuad suaziyo Joluds ‘uolisinboe juswdinba Ajgjes ‘suoiels auy ‘swooisse|d pejs peay apnjoul
syoeloid asay| ‘seAgoalqo asay) }oaw o) swelboid Buipoddns pue sbuip|ing 6unonisuod pue sisuped No yum spaau Ajlunwwod Buikjyuap)
"SJIUN JO SUOI}eAOUSI pue ‘ainjonliselul

Jo apesbdn apno ui 0} sHUN YHYNHO Jo uoneziusepow Buiob-u O "spun Buis noy agqnd jo weibo id soueusjuiew jusbijip e ulejuie

(sanoalqQ o16e1eAS 8Y) 0} pajelRy) (S)ANARDY

"SaA1}03(qo pue [eob s Ajoyiny 3y} Joaw 0} papasu salji|ioe) pue s|00} sy} Aouabe ay) apinoid o

‘salouajadwod |9A9) |IINS pue [Bo1uyda)} 8akojdws sdueyus o]

"S92IAI8S Jualjd AJjenb pue aAisuodsal apiaoid o)

"S9IIIUNWIWOD INO JO spaau ay) Buissasse ul suoneziuebio Juswuianob pue jyoid-uou yym sdiysuoneal 1no uayjbualis pue sdueyus o)
"SJuslD YYNHO Joj sawoy Asejiues pue ajes ‘Juadap apinoid o)

(Aupqisuodsal jo eale weiboid yoes ssaippy) S9A123[qO ue|d sibajens g

‘JuswaAosdwl AJunwwod Jo XSe}) UoWWOD
ay} u ajedioned o) asudiajus ajeAud Jo uswabeinosus ybnoiyy pue sweiboid [eyuswuianob (90| pue [ejaps) ajqejieAe (e ybnouyy ‘saljiwe}
awooul moj 10} Bulamp Aejues pue ‘yusdap ‘ajes jo uoisiroid Aq pue juswdojansp Ajunwwod yo Buiuueld Jadoid Aq ‘seiUNWILIOD JO [EM3US)
pue Juswdojanapal Aiapio ayj Aq ‘suonipuod Jybiiq pue wnjs jo uoneulwiid ay) Aq ajdoad s,wens) Jo aiejam pue Ajajes ‘yjlesy ayj sjowoid o]

(juswa)e)g uoIsSI\ UOIISOd) UOISSIN YV

(ennnoax3 Aq pajejdwo)) INIWSSIASSV-413S - | LdvVd

elleq m_w_C<“m_m_._.<m_ 40 JNVN

renuuy ] (1epul) enuuy-was] | §202/L0/L0 ©L ¥202/80/L0  ‘woid
Hoday 10j uoseay poday jo pouad

8¢l (payyisse|oun) 1030241 2A1INI3X] ITOdVN "4 H138VvZIn3
*ON @| 99Aojdw3z 3[}J11 / UonBIYISSE|D UONISOd awep sakojdw3

sy pasery om o b=y

VINHO

(3dN3) NOILVNTVAT IONVINNO4¥3d LNINIDVYNVIN JALLNIAXI
ALIMOHLNY TVM3INIY NvadN ANV ONISNOH NVNO

PAGE 25 of 48

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025



9 jo Z abed £202/20/1.0 - (3d3) uonenjeA3 ssuewiouad Juawabeuey aAndaxy

‘uoissiw s,uoieziuebio

ay) Buipoddns 0} JuUBLHWIWIOD Jes[d B pue ‘uoledlpap ‘wsijeuolssajoid sjoajyal souewopad 19 JUSWUOIIAUS YI0M SANBI0qe||0D
e SI9)S0} pue ‘spiepue)s pue saioljod ypm aoueldwos sainsus ‘sjeob |eyuswpedap Buinaiyoe ul wes) Jay sepinb ays
‘Juswabeuew |euoneziuebio Buolys pue ‘Bujew-uoisioap punos ‘diysiapes| aAoaje pajelisuowap Ajjusisisuod sey Jojoalq a8yl

(ueld 91691BAS BY) UI payuap! seARalqo sy} Bunesw o) sajejal ) se aduewlopad ||BISAO SSOSSY) ddueWIOMdd jo Alewwns  °Q

PAGE 26 of 48

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025



9 Jo ¢ abed

€202/L0/10 — (3dIN3) uonenjeAs asuew.opdd Juswabeuey sAN2ax3

]

sp2aloag puv suvjg 1 H fo 2ouvudpuivpy ¥ uoyviadQ 2andaffg €1

uawndY ssauisng ‘7 [

dupiqisuodsay €avtonpl / (ISt / IqIun0ddy [

Ausaaarq sarowmoad o[

uondV $po241(g puv saadsuy

a3uvy) spvo7

Suyvp uo1s12(q

sdiysuoyvay sping

SO1Y}5 S}0U04J

uoyvaouuy suorduny)

UONIJI(J PUD UOISLA SIIVIIUNUIO)

Suruuvlg 218210418

[]
[]
[]
[]
[]
L]
[]
]
[]
[]
[]
[]

0O O O O O O O L O Ly Ay

L OOy O o Ly o O oy o A 4y
I D D D D N D D N N D S

L O O O O Oy Ly A oy Oy oy g O

diysiapvay

fi0joejSiyes jeuibaep

-un

fiojoejsnes | Aiojoejsnes
Ay61H

Buipueysing

(yoea o) seijdde jey) buljes ay) o94y2D)
Josinuadng Aq pajoidwod :S3AILNDAXT 40 SNOILYLO3AAXT - 1l Livd

1:14
‘ON @] @@Aojdwz

(pauyisse|doun) 1039341q aA1NddX]
ap1L / uoyedlISSe| uonisod

ITOdVN "4 H138VZI13

awepN aakojdwz

(3dIN3) NOLLVNTVAI SONVINNO4¥Id LNIFWIDVNVYIN IAILNIAXA
ALROHLNY TVM3N3Y NVEYN ANV ONISNOH NVNO

PAGE 27 of 48

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025



9 Jo ¢ abed

€202/,0/1.0 - (3dW3) uonenjeas asuewioudd Juswabeueyy aAnndaxy

quybisiano pue uonejuswnaop ybnosoyy Bulutejurew sjym ‘ssauliey pue Aoeindoe ypum sajni saljdde Ajjusisisuod ays ‘suonenbai
aNH [esape pue saljod jeuoneziuebio yyum aouendwod Bulnsus up souewsopad Buipuelsino sejelisuowap Jojoalg ayL

UONBIIISN {/SIUIW WO

[]

[]

[]

[]

/]

(82 qNH [p42pa,] puv Ao1j0J 0] 20uUd.49Yypy) :pIepue)}S NUBULIOLIdJ

‘Ajonijoaye passalppe e suIsduod Jey) Buunsua ‘ssauanisuodsal pue ‘UoEdIUNLIWOD JB3|d ‘wsljeuolssajold sulejurew
ays -a1qnd ay} pue s|eIolo Juawuidanob yum suonoelsul Jay ul ad1AI8s Jawolsnd Alojoesies Ajybiy sejelisuowap J0joailg ay L

:UONBIYIISN [/SYUIW WO

[]

[]

[]

(A

[]

(snoo, 42wo0isny)) :pIepue)s NUEULI0JIdJ

Kiojoejsiyes
-un

jeuibaepy

Ai0joeySsiyesg

Aiojoeysiyeg
Aly6iy

BuipuejsinQ

(10sinuadng Aq pejsjidwo)) SQYVANVLS - 1l 1Ldvd

143

‘ON @ @3/Aojdwg

(palyisse|oun) 1039a41g 9AIIND3X]

93l / uonjedyisse|n uonisod

ITOdVN "4 H138VvZI13
awepN aakojdw3z

amrey ety ey S

VINHO

(3dIN3) NOILLVNTVAI FONVINNO4¥3d LNIJWNIDVNVIN JAILNDIXT
ALROHLNY TVYM3N3Y NVadN ANV ONISNOH NVNO

PAGE 28 of 48

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025



9 Jo g abed

€202/20/1.0 - (3dW3) uonenjeA] asuewiopad Juswabeuep aAnNdaxy

UANOISSTININOD YUapIsay sndio) “J [1e]

SYANOISSTAINOD A0 QAVOHd VINHD PqUISTA] JUIEA

STANOISSTNINOD 40 AVOd VINHD TqUIBIA 991y - erruryg

SHANOISSTNINOD 40 MAVOd VIANHD PQUSA "S3LI0 ], Y 10IIA

SHANOISSTNNOD 40 MAVOY VHNHD PQUIBIA "Bl[3( °S BIsIuY

SYANOISSTNINOD 40 AAVOd VINHD "usulIey) 3DIA “Zaydueg °d [PeueyjeN

AHOLOVASILYVSNN[ ]
AVNIOYVIN[ ]

SYANOISSININOD 40 QUVOd VINHD "Uewirey) ARy  uyor

NIVL13¥ LON[] NIVL3N [/]

AHOLOVASILVS ATHOIH[/]

AY¥OLOVHSILVS[ ] ONIANV1S1NO[ ]

(AI TII ‘II T S14pd uo paspq Suv4 [ip4240) ONILIVYE T1IVE3IA0 —~ A 1¥vd

PAGE 29 of 48

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025



9 jo g abed £202/20/10 — (3dW3) uonenjeA3 adsuew.ouad juswoabeuepy aAinNIaxy

ajeq ainjeubif sokojdwz

—>tee/Ra/vo ,EK

u§. Q:\S‘m\vzs\v»\% .va&v- v e w&)\,ﬁi A
?;«s\%gg.\ﬁﬁg ?5?

FYr
L T N

-

(uvyd juswdopaasp ; uoypnipas 2oupuiiofiad Supw3a. S1uWISDSIP 40 SJUIUIASD ‘SUL20U0D ‘SUOIIDAL Auv Jpnjout Avpy)  :spudUIWO)) ddKojdury

(‘pejosyes si uondo siy} yi ‘Aiojepuew ae s)uswwod ssfojdwy) ANdU0)) Jou cQD

.=5=oWN_

:33A071dINT A9 13T1dINOD

:144 (payissejoun) 1030311Q 2AINI9X3 ITOdVN "4 HL3gVvZI13
*ON @| 92Aojdw3 3J}1L / uoneIsse|H uolisod awepN aakojdwg

ey g v po Bomng ey

VINHO

(3dINT) NOLLVNTVAT IONVINNOFHId LNIWIDOVNVIN JALLNDIAXI
ALIHMOHLNY TVMINIY NvadN ANV ONISNOH NVNO

PAGE 30 of 48

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025



9 jo | abey £202/20/10 — (3dIN3) uonenjeas asuewiouad jusawabeuepy aApnsaxg

*Ajjeuonouny pue sajiuswe uispow yym 3)81dwod sispenbpeay Ajuoyiny Buisnoy mau jo uononsuod

‘salouajedwod [aAs] [|IMs pue abpajmouy asealdul 0} pue|si 4o pue uo yjoq seunpoddo Buiuiesy yum yejs spinosd o)

"S82IAI9S 9oueyud 0} ABojouyo9) UISpOoW JO 8sn asealdul pue safijioe) ano jo apesbdn ‘Buluiel; 991A19s Jawo)snd Bulob-uo spinoid
"swooisseo uoneonpa [epads pue Ayjioe) Buial jeuonisuel) Yinok ‘sanijioe}

fousbiowe Apspje }npe ‘syueq pooj ‘SI19juad sudaZPIo Joluds ‘uolsinboe Juswdinbe Ajojes ‘suonels aly ‘SWOOISSE[O HelS peay apnjoul
sjoaloid asay) "seAoalqo asay) Joaw o) sweiboid Buipoddns pue sbuipjing 6unonisuod pue sisuped No yym spasu Ajlunwwod BuiAynuap)
*S}IUN JO SUOIJBAOUSI pue ‘ainjoniiseljul

jo apeibdn apno ul 0} syuN YYNHO jo uoneziuispow bBuiob-u O ‘spun Buis noy dlgnd jo weibo id soueusjuiew Juabijp e ulejule

(senoslqo o16o)eng ay) 0} pajeRy) (s)AAnoy

"saAI}oa(qo pue |eob s Ajioyiny ay) }oaw 0} papasu salijioe) pue sjoo} ay) Aouabe ey epinoid o)

'saloua)adwiod [aA3] |IfS pue |esiuyos) aakojdwe aosueyus o)

*S20IAISS Jualjo AJjenb pue aaisuodsail apinoid o)

*SaNIUNWWOD INO Jo spaau ay) Buissasse ul suopeziuebio yuswuianob pue Jyoid-uou yym sdiysuonejal Jno usyjbualns pue asueyus o]
"SjusIo YHNHO Joj sawoy Asejiues pue ajes ‘Juadap apiaoid o]

(Aupgisuodsasl jo eale welboid yoeas ssaippy) S9ARIBIQO ueld s1bajens g

‘Juswanoidwil AHUNWWOD JO XSe)} uowwod
ay) ui ayeddiped o) esudisjus ajeaud jo Juswabeinoous ybnouy) pue sweiboid |eluswulancb (00| pue |e1ops) ajqejieAe jje ybnoiy) ‘saljiwey
awooul moj Joj Bulemp Asejues pue Juaoap ‘ajes jo uoisiroid Aq pue juswdojeasp Ajunwwod jo buiuueld Jedoid Aq ‘seiuNWIWIOD jo [emaudl
pue juswdojanapal Alspio ayj Aq ‘suoiipuod Jybijg pue wnjs jo uoneulwi|d ay} Aq sjdoad s,wens) Jo aleyam pue Ajajes ‘yjeay ayj sjowolrd o}

(Juewaeje)s uoissi|\ uoyisod) UOISSIN 'V

(emnoex3 Aq pajsjdwo)) INIWNSSISSV-413S - | Lyvd

SalI0] Y ._Ou0_>”m_m_._.<m 40 JNVN

renuuv ] R RS ] S202/L0/L0  ©L ¥Z0Z/80/L0  ‘woid
Hoday 10j uoseay poday jo pousad

8¢.L (paissejoun) 1030311g 2ANI9X3 ITOdVN "4 H139VvzZI13
*ON @] @9Aojdwgy 3311 / UonedISSE|D UoISOd awepN a3kojdwg

S gy v o g W

VANHO

(3dIN3) NOILVNTVAI IONVINHOFH3d LNIJWIDVYNVIN JAILNIIXI
ALROHLNY TVM3N3Y NVaN ANV ONISNOH NVNO

PAGE 31 of 48

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025



9 jo z abed €202/L0/10 — (3dNT) uonenjea] asuewiopdd Juswabeuely aanndexg

‘je)s Joj Juswdinba pue ainjiuiny 8210 SNOLIBA JO JO Juswaind0ld "s}oafoid pue swelboid snoLeA Jiay) 1oy
Spaau YHNHO |auuosiad Aiessadosu ay) apiaoid 0} suoljisod pue SjuejuNOIJe o) SjuaWwyiNdal days anoge Yim spiemio) Buinopy

‘'spsemuoj welboud ay) anow 0) Juesw sapiAloe pue sueld ‘saioljod
snoueA ay) bundope pue buidojaaap pue joafoid A1an02aYy Ja)sesiq Juels) 3o0|g Juawdojaaag Ajlunwwo?d) ayy uo bune| ‘eb6pnq
Buneisado yuswabeuey Jossy BuisnoH ayj jo uondope Ajswi pue ‘weiboud Jayonoa buisnoH ay} jo uondope pue buimepdn

"SJUSAD SBDIAISS
0] Jodssed YIM UiiSISSE pue ‘njsuej Yiim ‘uoijijeod SsajaWioH wens) ay) ybnodyy sennus jyoid-uou snouea yum buibebug

‘sj09foud sejiwis Jayjo pue ‘sagiaies Buuojuow
pieng) Ajunoas Buinod jo ‘Buuiojiuow pue suoljejeisul eiswed A1ndas Jo Juswainooid ‘Jiedal aouay ‘Jiedals Joos 8)810U0)) ‘SHuUN
YHNHO snoueAa Jo s}osloid uoneyjigeyal snoinolswnu ale Jay} Sudld YHNHO 40} sawoy Aiejues pue ajes ‘yuadsap buipinoid

0} spJebai ylpn “saAnoalqo ueld 2168)el1S au) 198w Jey) SaniAljOB SNOLIBA USSSISA0 puB pajeljiul sey J0)0ali] 9AINdax3 ay |

(ue|d o1b6ajenlS By} ul paynuapl saAdalqo ay) bunaaw 0} sajejal )i Se aouewlopad [|eJaA0 SSaSSY) aduewlouad jo Alewwng g

PAGE 32 of 48

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025



9 jo ¢ abed

€202/20/10 = (3dW3) uonenjeal asuewioudd juswabeuely aAnnoax3

[

spalo4g puv suvjg qH Jo 22uvuapuivpy p uoyvsadQ) aanpdaffq €1

uawundy ssauisng 7 [

Grqisuodsay divponplg / [vost] / GiquIunoddy I 1

Ap1s4241(F s2100104J O

uonoy spoa41(q puv sasrdsuy -

a3uvy)) sppay

Suryvpy uoisoq

sdiysuoyviay spyng

So1Yp7 Sap0W04g

uoyvaouuy suorduvy)

UONI2JI(J PUD UOIS1A SIIDITUNUIUIO))

Sutuuvyg nSawyg

[]
[]
[]
[]
[]
[]
[]
[]
[]
[]
[]
[]

L) O Oy Oy Oy o Oy g o O ) 3y A

L & O D D O S D O O ) O

SIS SIS T ESTS S

DO O DO O Oy O Oy Oy O Oy O

diysaopvay *

Aiojoejsiyes jeuibaepy

-un

Kioyoejsiyes

Aiojoejsnes
Ayb6iy

Buipuejsing

(yoeo 0} saydde jey; bunes ayj ¥28yD)
Josinuedng Aq pajeidwo)d :SIAILNOIXI 40 SNOILLYLOIdX3 - Il LMVd

8¢.
*ON Q] @9/Aojdwiz

(payissejoun) 1032a11q aAlNIAX]
3pLL / uonedyisse| uonisod

ITOdVN "4 H138VvZI13
awepN 9akojdwz

St ey very p Sy ooy

VEINH

(3dN3) NOILYNTVAI SONVINNO4¥3d LNIWIDOVNVYIN JALLNDTXT
ALRIOHLNY TVMINIY NVadN ANV ONISNOH NVNO

PAGE 33 of 48

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025



9 Jo ¢ abed €202/L0/10 — (3dW3) uonenjeAg asuewsouad Juswabeuey aAndaxgy

‘UB|d UOI}BO0||Y Paifend JIpa1) Xe| awoou| Mo ‘saulejepinb pue spiepuels
weiboud 1ayonoA as10yo BuisnoH ayy 8yl suoenbas pue splepue)s ‘Aoljod gNH [esepe snouea jo uondope pue ssjepdn Ajswi |

U0 RIYISNL/SHUIW WO

_III_ _||I_ _H_ H D (s32Y dNH [v42pa pup Ao1]04 0] 20U242ypy) :pABPUEB)S IUBULIONIIJ

‘¢ *je)s Jo Jawoisno [euisjul ay) Jo spasu
ay} Bunesw uo snooj e moys suonisod [eaniuo 10} Juswyinidal days anoge pue Juawdinba pue ainjuiny 8210 Jo juswainoold pue
SNO0J 9SIMaYIT "JaWO0)SND JUSI[O 8Y} puUe SNO0) B Moys Buuojuow pue seiswed AJUNdas ‘uoiie}ljiqeyal 1o} oy sjoafoid snouea ay |

:UONBIYISNL/SHUIWWO))

_H_ _H_ D H D (sno0,] 4ow01sNY)) :pABPUR)S IUBULIONIIJ

Aiojoejsies jeuibaep Kiojoeysniyeg | Aiojoejsiyes Buipuejsing o
-un AlyBiH (tosiuedng Aq pejsjdwon) SAYVANVIS - Il 1aVd

:14 (payissejoun) 1030311q aANIaX3 IMOdVN "4 H13g9VvZIn3
*ON @l 92Aojdwz 3[}1L / uoneayISSe|H uoniIsod awepN aakojdwz

dmonq ey vy pntumg

VINHO

(3dINT) NOILVNTVAT SIONVINUOHNId INIFWIDOVNVIN IALLNDIXI
ALIMOHLNYV TVMINIY NVEEN ANV ONISNOH NVYNO

PAGE 34 of 48

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025



gjo g efied £20Z/L0/10 ~ (3dN3) uopenieAg saurwiIoled Juswabeus|y eARNoeXT “

UANOISSTINIAIQD 1udpisay “sudro]y " 183 §

T T Ty Toyvesel

weq SYANOISSTININOD 0 GUVOd VINHD "PAURI FueseA |

9e(q SYANOISSTAINOD A0 AUvVOd VUIHD Jquis]y o1y ' eIiury

S Y e T T o

, A
/ e iy SYANOISSINIAOD A0 (VO VINHD "BqUdA "SILI0], 7 10J9TA
s20'sy Ao T TEILT I .

1R SWANOISSIAINOD 40 QavO0d VaIHD PqWojA weq 'S ey f

SHANOISSTATAOD 40 (GAVO4d VIIHD "Uemlisy]) 3TA "Z37dury °J [PEUBHEN

SYWANOISSTANINOD A0 AAVO4d VUIHD "UewLiey) "CIdAR [ uyof §

NIVLZd 1ON[ | NIVLINEY §

AYHOLOVASILYSNN[ ] AHOLOVASILYS ATHOIHKS

TYNIDUVIN_] AYOLOVASILYS[ | ONIGNV.LSL1NO[ ]

(I T I T St4vd uo paspq 3upp4 [ip4240) "ONILVYE TIVHIAO =~ A 1idvd

PAGE 35 of 48

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025



g jo g abed £€202/20/10 — (3dW3) uonenjeas asueuwioudd Juswabeuey aannoaxy

ainjeubig mT>o_aEm

(‘uvyd EwSQ&?&% / UOIIDN]DAD mu:que\xmm ME.E@ME S)UUW2243DSIP 4O &:m:&m.&@ ‘SUL2OUOD ‘SUO11ID24 Aup Ipnjout Avpy) :spudmIMWO)) dAojduy

(‘pajosyes si uondo siyy yi ‘Aiojepuew aie spuswwIod 8sfojdw3) ANIUO)) joU cA—D

h..o:onv_ w _

:33A071dIN3 A9 3131dINOD

8cL (payissejoun) 1032311q aANI9X3 IMOdVN "4 H138VvZI13
*ON g} @9/Aojdwig 91 / uonedyisse|H uonisod awepN 9akojdwg

Aoy ey Y o sy ooy

VANHO

(3dIN3) NOLLVNTVAT FIONVINNO4¥3d LNIJWIDVNVIN SAILNDIIXT
ALIMOHLNY TVMINIY NVE¥N ANV ONISNOH NVNO

PAGE 36 of 48

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025



se0e) B 77

9 jo | abed £€202/L0/10 — (3dW3) uonenjeA] aouew.opad Juswabeuepy aANd9x3y

‘Ajijeuonouny pue sapuswe uspow yym a)a|dwod siapenbpesy Ajoyiny Buisnoy mau Jo uoyonsuod

‘sa1ouajedwod [9A3] [|IXS pue abBpajmous aseaIoUl 0) PUB|s] JO puUB uo yjoq saiiunpoddo Buluiesy yym yejs apinoid o)

‘S90IAI8S 99uBYUS 0} ABOJOUYOS) UIBPOW JO 8SN asealoul pue selioe) Jno Jo apelbdn ‘Bululel; 8a1AI8s JawW0)snd Bulob-uo apiroid
"SW00JSSe|o uoneaonpa |eloads pue Ajjioe; Bulal jeuonisuel) yinoA ‘sanijioe}

Aousbiowa Ajep|e Jjnpe ‘syueq pooy ‘s1sjuad susziyo Joluss ‘uolsinboe juswdinba Ajajes ‘suonels aly ‘SWOOISSED Uels pesy apnjoul
sjoaloid asay ] ‘seAydelqo asay} jJoaw o) sweiboid Buipoddns pue sbuip|ing Buonsisuod pue sisuped No Yim spasu Ajunwwod Buikpusp)
"S}lun JO SUOIjeAOUSl pue ‘ainjonJiselyul

Jo apeibdn apnio ul 0} SHUN YHNHO j0 uoneziuispow Buiob-u O "spun Buis noy olgnd jo weibo id sdueusjulew Jusbijip e uleule|y

(seAoalqQ oibejenS ayj 0} pajelay) (s)ANAROY

‘saA}99[qo pue |eob s Auoyiny ay) }9sw 0} papasu san|ioe) pue sjoo) ay) Aousbe ayj apiroid o

‘sa10ua)adwod [9A9] |IS pue |edluydd) sakojdws asueyus o)

'S89IAJS Jualjd Ayjenb pue aAisuodsal apinoid o

“SaIIIUNWWIOD INO Jo Spaau ay} Buissasse u| suoeziuebio Juswuianob pue Jyoid-uou ypm sdiysuonelal 1no usyjbuans pue soueyus o
‘Sjusld YHNHO Joj sawoy Asejiues pue ajes ‘Juadap apinoid o]

(Aypqisuodsal jo ease weiboid yoes ssaippy) SaARd3lqO ueld aibajens g

Juswanoldwi AJlunwiwod JO YSe} UoWWOoD
ay} u ajedioned o} asudiajus ajeAud jo uswabeinodsus ybnoiy) pue swelboid jejuswuidanob |20 pue [el1aps) a|qejieAne e ybnouyy ‘saljiwe;
awooul Moj Joy Buljemp Aejues pue ‘Juaoap ‘ajes Jo uoisioid Aq pue juswdojarsp Ajunwwod jo buluueld Jadoid Ag ‘sauNWWOD Jo [emaus)
pue juswdojanapai AlJapio ay} Aq ‘suonipuod jybilq pue wnjs jo uoneulwd ay} Aq sjdoad s weng jo aieyam pue Aajes ‘yjeay ayj sjowoid o)

(Juswaje)s UoISSI\ UOHISOd) UOISSIN  °V

(eAnnoex3 Aq pajsjdwo)) INIWSSISSV-AT13S - | LAvd

adly "4 elwg *d31vd 40 JNVN

fenuuy] (1eput) fenuuy-was] | S202/L0/L0 ©L ¥202/80/L0  woud
Hoday Joj uoseay Hoday Jo pouad

8¢c.L (pauisse|aun) 1039311Q aANIAX3 IMOdVN "4 HL38VZI13
*ON @l 93/Aojdwz 3J31L / uonealyisse|H uonisod awepN aakojdwz

Aampy ey e g g vy

VINHO

(3dINT) NOILYNTVAI IINVINNO4¥Id LNIJWIDVNVYIN FAILNIIXT
ALIMOHLNY TVM3NIN NVEiN ANV SNISNOH NVYND

PAGE 37 of 48

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025



9 Jo z abed €202/20/10 = (3dINT) uonenjeas asuewiouad juswabeuep aAndax3y

(uelq 21691e1S By} UI payUBP! SAARDS[GO 8y} Bueaw o) sajejel )i Se sduewlopad |[elsno SSassy) aouewuouad jo liewwng Qg

PAGE 38 of 48

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025



9 jo ¢ abed

€20Z/20/10 — (3dW3) uonenjeAs aduewopad juawabeuepy aAnndax3y

[]

sp02lo4g pun suvjd qH JO 2ouvudpuwpy p uonviadQ aanoaffg ‘€1

uawndY ssauisng ‘7|

qppqisuodsay Cuvronpi / [pos1 / QIqLIUN0IIY [ [

Aysaaarq sajowiodd 01

uoyOY sp241( puv sa.ndsuy

a3uvy) sppvoT -

Suyv uo1s12(q

sdiysuoyvjay sping

So1Y15 sapouiog -

uoypaouuy suorduny)

U041 PUD UOISLA SIIVIIUNUUIO))

Sutuunlg 0132438

[]
[]
[]
]
]
[]
]
[]
L]
[]
[]
[

OO O O O O O O O O Gy o A

OO O OO Oy L g oy Oy 4y o A
O O O O O O O O O S O

SIS SIS

diysaapvay

fio3oejsiyes jeuibien

-un

Kioyoeysiyes | Aiojoejsies
Aly61H

Buipuejsing

(yoea 0} saijdde jey; bunes ayj ¥98yD)
Josiuadng Aq pejeidwo) :S3AILNDIXI 40 SNOILYLOIdX3 - Il 1¥vd

8¢.L
*ON @] @3/ojdwiz

(paisse|oun) 1032a41Q 8A1INIAXF
a)LL / uonedyisse|n uonisod

ITOdVN "4 H138VvZIT3
awepN aafojdwg

(3dINT) NOILVNTVAI IONVINNOH¥Id LNIFWIADVNVIA JAILNIIXI
ALRIOHLNY TVM3INIY NvaidN ANV ONISNOH NVNO

PAGE 39 of 48

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025



9 jo ¢ abed

€202/20/1.0 = (3dINT) uonenjeAs asueuliopad Juswabeuely aAnnNd9x3

:UON)BIIISN (/SIUIW WO

(s32Y A(1H 1v42p2.] puv Ad1j04 01 2oU242ypy) :pAepue)§ NUBULIOLId]

:UON)BIJIISN [/SHUIUWIWO))

[]

[]

[]

[] /]

(snoo,f 42wo0jsny)) :paepuels NUBULIOLIdT

Kiojoejsnes
-un

jeuibiepy

Kiojoejsies

Kiojoeysiyes BuipuejsinQ
Ay61H

(tosinadng Aq pajejdwo)) SQEVANVLS - 1l 1¥Vd

::14

*oN @l 99/ojdw3z

(pauissejoun) 1039341g 9AIINIAX]

a[}iL / UOREIYISSE|D UORISOd

ITOdVN "4 HL39VvZI13
awepN 9afojdwg

stv7q pareng v po ey o

VEANHO

(3dINT) NOLLYNTVAI IONVINNO4¥Id LNIFNIDVNVIN JAILNIIXT
ALRIOHLNY TVYM3N3IY Nvaidn ANV ONISNOH NVNO

PAGE 40 of 48

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025



9 jo g abed

€202/L0/10 - (3dW3) uonenjeas asuewiouad Juswabeuepy aANd9x3

AANOISSTININQD 1UdpIsay 'sndio) J [1e3]

SYANOISSTININOD A0 AAVOd VANHD RqUIIA JUEIEA

GZ0Z/LE/L

| 8“% £ 7 W) STANOISSTANOD 40 GUVOd VINHD 1oquBIy o1y “J ey

EF | SHANOISSININOD 40 AAVO4d VINHD TRqUIBIA ‘SOLIOT, "o 103TA

STANOISSTAINOD A0 QUVOd VIANHD RqURIA eIR( S ¢Sty

SYANOISSTININOD 40 AVOL VUNHD "UsuliIey) DIA "Zoydues *J [SeUeyjeN

SYANOISSTININOD A0 AAVOd VINHD "ueuLIley) "eIdAR °f uyof

NIVL13¥ 1ON[ ] NIV.L3N [/

A¥OLOVASILVSNN[ ] A¥OLOVASILYS ATHOIH[/]

AVNIDAVIAL ] A¥OLOVASILYS] ] ONIANV1S1NO[ ]

(AI ‘I TI T S1avd uo pasvq Suyp4 jp4240) ONILVYE TIVEIAO =~ A 13dVd

PAGE 41 of 48

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025



9 Jo g abed £€202/L0/1.0 = (3dINT) uonenjeA aduewiouad Juswobeuepy aAlNdax3

ajeq w._:«%m_m aakojdwy

Sxoe) 5oLl A4

Nz ﬁ‘xz
WPL\S Q N.\.i\ u
poripin 9. roppentos v (1 Ty vesssis) bpreppr], saih ~of ~ob oy

(uvyd yuawdojaasp / uoypnipas 2oupuLiofiad Sulpw3a4 SJUIUIILIDSIP A0 SJUIULIIASD ‘SULDIUOD ‘SUOLIDIL Aup apnpout Adopy) :spudWIWIO)) dAojdury

(‘pajosyas si uoydo siyy yi ‘Aiojepuew a.e sjuswwoo s8sfo/dws) ANIUOY) jou QQD

h=u=cwm_

:33A07TdIN3 A8 3131dINOD

8¢/, (payyissejoun) 1032a11Qq aAIND3X3 ITOdVN ‘4 H138VvzI13
‘oN @l 8a/Aojdwg aplL / uonelISSe]) uonIsod swepN aakojdwg

Aoy ey e o By

VINHO

(3dINT) NOLLVNTVAT FONVINHOAUId LNIWIDVNVIN JAILNIIAXST
ALROHLNY TVYM3NIH NVEdN ANV ONISNOH NVNO

PAGE 42 of 48

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025



"Ajl|leuonjouny pue saljiuswe uiapow yym a)ajdwod siapenbpesy Ajuoyny Buisnoy mau Jo uononssuo)

"solous}edwod [9A9] ||Is pue abpajmouy asealoul 0) pue|s] Jo pue uo yjoq senunyuoddo Bujuiely yum yeys apinoid o)

"S90IAI8S 8ouByuS 0} ABojouydas) uispow Jo asn asealdul pue salijioe} Jno jo apeibdn ‘Bujuies; aoinies sswoysnd Bulob-uo apinoid
"SWOOISSEO uoieonps |eloads pue Ajij1oe) BuiAll jeuonisuel} yinoA ‘ssnijioey

Kouabiawe Apsple }npe ‘syueq poo} ‘siajuad suazpo Joluas ‘uonisinboe yjuswdinba A)sjes ‘suone)s all ‘SWOOISSE[O JUe)S peay apnjoul
sjoefoid esay] "seApoalqo asay) }J@sw o} swelboid Buipoddns pue sbuipjing Buiyonlysuod pue sisuped No Yym spasu Ajunwwod BuiAjiusp)
"S)iun JO SUOIJEAOUBI pUB ‘BinjonJjseul

Jo apeibdn spnjo ul 0} sHUN YYNHO JO uoneziuispow bBuiob-u O 'spun Buis noy oygnd jo welbo id soueusjuiew Jusbip e ulejuley

(senoalqo o1balens ay) 0) pajejay) (s)ANAnoy

'saAj09(qo pue |eob s Ajuoyiny sy} j9aw 0} papasu sal|ioe) pue sjoo} ay) Aouabe ayy apinoid o)

"'s910ua}adwod [8Ad] ||INS pue |edluyds)} asAojdwa asueyus o

"S90IAIBS Jual0 A)lenb pue aAisuodsal apinold o]

"Sa1}luNWWOJ INO JO spaau ay} Buissasse uj suoneziuebio uawuianob pue yjoid-uou yyum sdiysuonelal J1no usyjbuals pue adueyus o
"SjuLIlo YHNHO 10} sawoy Aiejiues pue ajes ‘Jusdap apianoid o

(Ainqisuodsal jo ease welboid yoes ssaippy) soAnoalqo ueld oibajenns g

‘jJuswaAoidwi Ajunwiwod JO ¥Se} UoWWOod

ay} ul ajedionued o) ssudisjus ajeaud jo Juswabeinooua ybnoiy) pue sweiboid |ejuswulanob [e20] pue |elopay a|ge|ieAe jje ybnouy) ‘saijiwey
awooul moj 1o} Buijjamp Alejiues pue ‘Jusdap ‘ajes Jo uoisiroid Aq pue juswdojaasp Ajunwwod jo Buiuueld Jadoid AqQ ‘saiuUNWWOD JO |emausl
pue juswdojanapai Aapio ayj Ag ‘suonipuod jybig pue wnjs jo uoneuiwijd ay} Aq ajdoad s,wens) jo aiejom pue Ajajes ‘yjjeay ay} ajowoid o

(JUSWA)E]S UOISSI UOISOd) UOISSIN 'V

SNAW0D A Tvy  -{3LVY 40 IWVYN (eAnnoax3 Aq pajeidwo)) INIFWSSISSV-413S - | LdVd

e TR SZ0Z/L0/0  °L YZ0Z/80/L0  woid
podoy 105 uoseay uoday Jo pouad

8¢L (payissejoun) J030011q 9AIND9X] ITOdVN "4 H139VvZI13

‘oN @i @2Aojdwg 3311 / UonedIISSE|D UOIISOd awepN aafojdwg

Aoy ey o s b vy

VEINHO

(3dINT) NOILVNTVYAT IONVINNOZUId LNIFWIDVYNVIN FALLNDIAXT
ALRMOHLNYV TTVMINIY NVEAN ANV ONISNOH NVNO

PAGE 43 of 48

2025

ing of October 21

Board Meet



£202/20/10 — (3dINT) uonenjeAs adsuewiopad juawabeuely aANOaX3

(uejd 2163)EA)S BY) Ul paynUSP! SBANDSIqo ay) Bunesw o) sajejal )i se souew.Iopad [[e19A0 ssassy) @ouewlopdd jo Altewwing  °Q

PAGE 44 of 48

2025

ing of October 21

Board Meet



9 jo ¢ abegd

€202/20/1L0 — (3dINT) uonenjeAag asuewiopad Juawabeuey aAlIN28X]

sp22lo4g puv suvig A H Jo 22uvuapuwpy 3 uonviadQ aanodffg ‘€1

UWNDY SSIUISNG T |

aqisuodsay Livonpl / [pos1] / ApqoIMnoddy I

Aps12a1(q sapouto4q 01

uondy Spa41(q puv sandsuy g

aduvy)) sppay

Supyopy uois2q

sdiysuoyvay sping

So1Ypry $2)0UI0Ad

uoyvaouuj suordwvy)

UONI2II(T PUD UOIS1A SIIVIIUNMWIO))

Suuuvyg 21321038

L DU O O O Oy Oy Oy oy Oy 4y 4

L OO o Oy oy oy Oy oy o) 4y 4
L OO O L Oy Ly Oy Oy oy Oy Oy 4
L O Loy O Oy oy o Oy O ) O

]

diysiopvaT ‘T

Kiojyoejsiyes jeuibiepn fi10)oejsiyeg | Aiojyoejsies W‘.-.x_wamu:o

IF—:

AyBiH

(yoes 0) sajdde jey) bunes ay) 32940)
Josinadng Aq pajejdwo) :S3AILNDIAXT 40 SNOLLY.LO3dX3 - Il Lyvd

8zl (peyISsE[OUN) 10390110 9ARNDSXT

‘oN @1 ea/ojdwig a}LL / UoyEDYISSE|D UoHISOd

IMOdVN "4 H1389VvZI13

awepN @9Aojdwgy

oy rarery v o Sy g oy

VINHO

(3dIN3) NOILVNTVAT FONVINHO4Y¥3d LNINIDVNVIN FALLNDIAXA
ALROHLNY TVM3NIY NvadN aNV ONISNOH NVNO

PAGE 45 of 48

2025

Board Meeting of October 21



* sacyprd (TY

wf 3O Tongyrbd

€202/20/10 — (3dINT) uonenjeA] asuewiopad Juawabeuey aANdax3y

ot 4 Z

;U0 BIYNISNL/SIUIWUIO))

/]

7 !

(s82y @NH [v49p2.] puv M1]0d 01 2ou2.124py) :pAepuUE)S AULULIOLIdJ

Souog Aoy = 0 Shpp vy $7 Sp N

/ 7Y
..\‘Wﬂtﬂ.*t\&@& \Uh\nv “U.\N\&Q\Q\\ \.“\-\8 .Wt%:\“\& “\\Q\.&V\ %Uﬁ ﬂ&h * “

/

o Basd Py ydomd * FY F° A onb 2y Peavh Y

we |23 Y81y ¥ \A&&*\E\:ﬁ%

"UONBIYNSNL/SHUIWWO))

A

(snoo, 42wo01sn)) :paepuUE)S UBUWLIONIdJ

Kiojoejsnes jeuibaepy

fioyoejsnes

Aiojoejsiyes
AiybiH

/

Buipuejs3nQ

(1osinusdng Aq pejsjdwo)) SAGYVANVLS - Il LdVd

8¢l
‘ON @} @@Aojdwig

(payisse|oun) 1030941q aAIINO9X]

aj}iL | uoyedyISSED UoHISOd

IMOdVN "4 H1389VvZI13

awepN 9afojdwz

(3dIN3) NOILYNTVAT SONVINHO4¥IAd LNFJNIDVNVIN IALLNDIXT
ALINOHLNY TVYM3NIY NVadN ANV ONISNOH NVNO

ooy psery ra o ey ey

PAGE 46 of 48

Board Meeting of October 21, 2025



€202/20/10 — (3dINT) uoienjeA] adsuewiopad Juswabeuely aAnoaxy

T

HYANOISSTNINOD uaplsoy sndio]) “i [1e3]

SYANOISSININOD 40 QAVOL VHNHD "PqUIdJA JuedeA

SUYANOISSININOD 40 AIVO4d VUNHD PBAURA 9Ty “f Bljlury

SYANOISSININOD 40 AVOLd VINHD "TRQUIBA "S3LI0], Y 10191A

SYANOISSTNINOD 40 @IVOd VINHD "1RqUBRA "eIR( 'S eISIuY

SYANOISSININOD 40 MAVOL VINHD "UellIle]) NDIA "Zoypues *d [deUeyjeN

A¥OL1OV4SILVSNN[ ]

TVNIDYUVINL ]

SYANOISSTININOD 40 AVOYL VHIHD "uswley) "eJdARy ‘f uyof

NIVL3¥ LON[ ] zE...%

AYOLOVHSILYS ATHOIH[ ]

AHOLOV4SILYS[ ] wz_ozﬁmpVoB
(AT ‘TIT ‘TI I Spd uo pasoq Sunv4 [p4240) ONILVY T1VH3IAO - A 1dvd

PAGE 47 of 48

2025

Board Meeting of October 21



9 J0 9 abed

£202/20/10 — (3dINT) uoienjeAs aouewiopad Juswabeuely 2AnNdaX3

ajeq ainjeubig ww&o_nEm

$<e€/R0 /b0 %
Loy vt

ﬁ\% VO S NV ) m,v\%mx_\& M) e w?&e&%i&ﬁw N«‘
w&\u\k.\vs.\\.o géﬁ\&é irgwadbéa\ge_g
sy 4y oo e Boomag b oo

-

(-uvyd yuzwdoanap ; uoupNvA2 2ouPULIOf12d SUIPADZIL SJUPWDDAZDSIP 4O SJUDWDIABD ‘SULIIUOD ‘SUOYIDIL AuUD 2pNjoul ADY)  :SHUIWTWO)) Jfoidmy

(-pajosjas si uondo sy y1 ‘Aioyepuew ale syuswiLod 99/ojdwz) ANIUOY) JoU oQ_H_

..:u-SOE

:3IAO0TdINT A9 1T TdNOD

8¢l

"oN @I @2/Aojdwz aJ}LL / uoyeoyISse|D uonisod

(payissejoun) 1030941q 9AIIN29X] ITOdVN "4 H1L3gvzI13

awieN aakojdwg

(3dINT) NOILVYNTVAT 3ONVINNOHNId LNIINIDVNVYIN JAILNDIX3
ALIMOHLNY TVMINIY NvgdN ANV SNISNOH NVND

ey prery i po boomn g oy

PAGE 48 of 48

2025

Board Meeting of October 21





